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VBC & COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountant 
A Professional Corporation 

97, Cedar Grove Lane, Suite 202, 
Somerset, NJ 08873 

 
 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT 
 
To the Board of Directors and Stockholder’s of, 
JNIT Technologies Inc 
Parlin, New Jersey 

We have reviewed the consolidated financial statements of JNIT technologies Inc (a New 
Jersey Corporation), and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as 
of June 30, 2023 and the related consolidated statement of income and retained earnings, 
cash flows and changes in stockholder’s equity for each of the three months period June 30, 
2023, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. We did not review the 
financial statements of Motivity Labs Private Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary), which 
statements reflect total assets of $ 7,166,699 as of June 30, 2023, total revenue of $ 
3,779,093 and Net income of $ 614,259 for the three months ended June 30, 2023. Those 
statements were reviewed by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us and our 
review, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Motivity Labs Private Limited, is 
based solely on the report of other auditors.  A review includes primarily applying analytical 
procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of company’s management. 
A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression 
of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements  
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. 

 

Accountant’s Responsibility  
Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagements in accordance with Statements on 
Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review 
Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to 
obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any material 
modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe 
that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion. 

 

 

 

 

3



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

VBC & COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountant 
A Professional Corporation 

97, Cedar Grove Lane, Suite 202, 
Somerset, NJ 08873 

 
 

Accountant’s Conclusion  
Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made 
to the accompanying consolidated financial statements in order for them to be in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Other matter 
The supplementary information comprising of the consolidated supplementary schedules on 
cost of sales and general and administrative expenses are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
supplementary information has been subjected to the review procedures applied in our 
review of the basic financial statements. We are not aware of any material modifications that 
should be made to the supplementary information in relation to the accompanying reviewed 
financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
 
 

 
 
VBC and Company CPA’s P.C. 
Somerset, New Jersey 
 
August 9, 2023 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

 AS OF JUNE 30, 2023   

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,780,842         
Accounts receivable, net 13,560,537       
Employee advances 115,882            
Accrued Interest 6,799                
Prepaid Expenses 4,186,581         
Other Current Assets 3,375,381         

Total current assets 23,026,022       

Other Assets 
Deferred Tax Assets 179,200            
Security Deposits 237,197            

Total Other assets 416,398            

Investments 550,000            
Goodwill 5,640,000         
Property and equipment,net 276,126            
Right - of - use asset 243,427            

Total assets 30,151,973$     

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 932,666            
Accrued Payroll Liabilities 1,944,784         
Current portion of long term loan 319,098            
Note Payable  - Current 234,955            
Line of credit 2,383,121         
Accrued Income taxes 406,116            
Other Current Liabilities 2,592,587         
Current portion of lease obligations 173,676            

Total current liabilities 8,987,003         

Other liabilities
EIDL Loan 4,217,945         
Term loan 861,714            
Employee Retention Credit 1,739,881         
Due to affiliates 1,300,324         
Long term portion of lease obligations 60,942              

Total other liabilities 8,180,806         

Stockholder's equity
Common Stock 236,259            
Retained earnings 12,672,504       
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 75,401              

Total Stockholder's equity 12,984,164       

Total liabilities &  Stockholder's equity 30,151,973$     

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

 FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Revenue 
Consulting income 9,000,628$       
Revenue from Software Services 3,705,960      
Other income 73,133           

Total Revenue 12,779,721       

Cost of sales 7,825,478      
General & admininstrative expenses 3,063,140      

Income from operations 1,891,104         

Interest expense 136,501         
Depreciation 29,428           
Interest expense - Lease liabilities 34,414           
Depreciation - Lease Assets 136,078         

Income before tax 1,554,683         

Income Taxes 424,427         
Deferred Tax expense 110,393         

Net Income 1,019,863         

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (72,531)            
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 147,932            

75,401              

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

 FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Cash flow from operating activities
Net income after taxes 1,019,863$       
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation 29,428              
Depreciation  - Lease assets 170,492            
Other comprehensive income movement (97,826)            
Foreign currency translation reserve 10,866              

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade and other receivables (3,230,860)        
Prepaid Expenses 135,994            
Net lease assets (135,291)          
Employee advances 1,000                
Other assets 10,735              
Other current assets 1,805,828         
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities (320,874)          
Accrued payroll and related costs 390,243            
Deffered taxes 205,203            
Other current liabilities 468,821            

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities 463,621            

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of assets (1,058)              
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities (1,058)              

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings, net 620,522            
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities 620,522            

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 1,083,086         

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 697,756$          
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 1,780,842$       

Interest paid 75,094$            
Taxes paid -$                 

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Common stock 
Issued and outstanding: 

Balance, beginning of period 236,259            

Balance, end of period 236,259            

Retained Earnings
Balance, beginning of period 11,652,641       

Net Income 1,019,863         

Balance, end of period 12,672,504       

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Balance, beginning of period (83,397)            
Change in foreign currency transalation adjustment 10,866              

Balance, end of period (72,531)            

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 147,932            

Total Sockholder's Equity 12,984,164       

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Note 1- Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
Nature of Operations – JNIT Technologies Inc. was incorporated as a New Jersey 
Corporation in August 2010, is engaged in providing software development and consulting 
services to various industries throughout the United States. The financial statements 
represent the consolidated financial statements of JNIT Technologies Inc, Motivity Labs, 
Inc. (subsidiary) and Motivity Labs Private Ltd (step down subsidiary - Incorporated in 
India). JNIT Technologies Inc along with its subsidiary and step-down subsidiary are 
collectively referred to as “the Company” in this report.  
 
Numerous factors affect the Company's operating results, including general economic 
conditions, market acceptance and demand for its consulting services, its ability to obtain 
new clients, and rapidly changing technologies and competition. The Company’s 
customer base covers a broad spectrum of industries including, Engineering, Financials, 
Information technologies, Manufacturing, Telecommunication among others.  
 
Accounting Policies – These financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepting in the United 
States of America (“GAAP”); consequently, revenues are accepted when services are 
rendered and expenses reflected when costs are incurred. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk - The Company maintains cash in bank deposit accounts 
which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced 
any losses in such accounts. The Company believes it is not exposed to any significant 
credit risk on cash and cash equivalents. With respect to trade receivables, the Company 
generally does not require collateral because of the common business practice prevailing 
in the industry and also that majority of the Company's customers are fairly well 
established companies operating in a variety of industries and geographic regions. When 
necessary, the Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon 
factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers, historical trends and other 
information.   
 
Use of Estimates - The Company's management makes estimates and assumptions in 
the preparation of its financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. These estimates and assumptions may affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the respective reporting periods. Actual results could differ from 
those results implicit in the estimates and assumption. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits. 
The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a remaining maturity 
principally of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

The Company maintains its cash in a bank deposit account that, at times, may exceed 
federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts 
and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk. 
 
Financial Instruments - The Company's financial instruments including cash and cash 
equivalents, accrued expenses, accounts receivable, accounts payable and lines of credit 
debt, all of which approximate fair value at the balance sheet dates. 
 
Accounts receivable – Accounts receivable are generated from various commercial 
entities. Accounts receivable are stated at cost less an allowance for doubtful accounts if 
considered necessary. Credit is extended to customers after an evaluation of the 
customer’s financial condition, and generally collateral is not required. Management’s 
determination of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on an evaluation of the 
accounts receivable, past experience, current economic conditions and other risks inherent 
in the accounts receivable portfolio.  
 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects the 
Company’s best estimate of probable losses inherent in the accounts receivable balance. 
We determine the allowance based on known troubled accounts, historical experience, 
and other currently available evidence.  Allowance for Doubtful accounts as on June 30, 
2023 was $ 105,033. 
       

Revenue Recognition - The Company generates most of its revenues from Technology 
Staffing, and IT Services. Comprehensive revenue recognition model is designed to depict 
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 
services. Revenues are recognized as control of the promised service is transferred to 
customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration expected in exchange for the 
services. Revenues from contract assignments are recognized over time, based on hours 
worked by the Company’s contract professionals. The performance of the requested 
service over time is the single performance obligation for assignment revenues. Revenues 
are recognized net of variable consideration to the extent that it is probable that a 
significant reversal of revenues will not occur in subsequent periods.  
 
The Company recognizes most of its revenue on a gross basis when it acts as a principal 
in its transactions. The Company has direct contractual relationships with its customers, 
bears the risks and rewards of its arrangements, has the discretion to select the contract 
professionals and establish the price for the services to be provided. The Company 
primarily provides services through its employees and through subcontractors; the related 
costs are included in cost of sales. The Company includes billable expenses (out-of-pocket 
reimbursable expenses) in revenue and the associated expenses are included in cost of 
sales. Maintenance revenues, if any, are recognized ratably over the term of the 
underlying maintenance agreement.  
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Impact of New Accounting Standards - In May 2014, the FASB issued an update to 
ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, further amended in July 2015. This 
update to ASC 606 provides a five-step process to determine when and how revenue is 
recognized. The core principle of the guidance is that a Company should recognize 
revenue upon transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the expected consideration to be received in exchange for those goods or 
services. This update to ASC 606 will also result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, 
providing guidance for transactions that were not previously addressed comprehensively, 
and improving guidance for multiple-element arrangements. The Company has adopted 
Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, effective January 01, 2019. Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers, using the modified retrospective method. The adoption 
allows companies to apply the new revenue standard to reporting periods beginning in the 
year the standard is first implemented, while prior periods continue to be reported in 
accordance with previous accounting guidance. Since the adoption of Accounting 
Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606 did not have a significant impact on the recognition of 
revenue, the Company did not have an opening retained earnings adjustment. 
 
Cost of Revenues – are classified as cost of sales on the income statement and consist 
primarily of employee costs and sub-contractors’ costs, and other costs incurred in 
connection with the execution of projects. 

 
Unbilled Revenues – represents services rendered prior to being invoiced due to certain 
contractual restrictions. The Unbilled revenue as on June 30, 2023 was $ 2,135,000 and 
is included under Accounts Receivable in the Balance sheet. 
   
Property and equipment – Property and equipment, consisting of computers, furniture, 
vehicle and equipment, are stated at cost. Improvements which substantially increase the 
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. 
Upon retirement or disposal, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed 
from the respective accounts and any gain or loss is recorded. Depreciation on all property 
and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives 
of the assets which range from three to five years. Depreciation expense for the three 
months ended June 30, 2023 was $ 29,428. 
 
Investment – The Company has characterized its investments in marketable securities, 
based on the priority of the inputs used to value the investments, into a three-level fair 
value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1), and lowest priority to unobservable 
inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to measure the investments fall within different levels of 
the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement of the instrument. Investments recorded in the accompanying 
balance sheets are categorized based on the inputs to valuation techniques as follows:  
 
Level 1 – These are investments where values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for 
identical asset in an active market the Company has the ability to access.  
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Level 2 – These are investments where values are based on quoted market prices that are 
not active or model derived valuations in which all significant inputs are observable in 
active markets. 
Level 3 – These are investments where values are derived from techniques in which one 
or more significant inputs are unobservable. 
 
June 30, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 
Investments - - $ 550,000 $ 550,000 
 
The Company had invested in a stock purchase of Motivity Labs on January 01, 2020. The 
total value of investment for 68% stock was $3,400,000, the Initial purchase price of which 
the company has made a payment of $1,360,000 (40%) of the purchase price and the 
balance amount $ 2,040,000 (60%) will be paid in Six installments of $340,000 every four 
months, commencing four months after the Closing Date. The installment payments will 
have interest at the rate of 6 % per annum after twelve months from the closing date. As 
per the agreement the Purchaser shall purchase all of the Remaining Shareholders’ 
shares of capital stock of the Company (the “Remaining Shares”) within eighteen (18) 
months from the date the agreement was entered. 
 
The Company has acquired the balance 32% stock in Motivity Labs Inc in January 2021, 
and thus owns 100% stock in Motivity Labs Inc. The total consideration was $ 5,640,000 
and was fully paid. 
 
Income Taxes – Income Taxes – The Company is taxed as a “C” corporation and as 
such accounts for income taxes pursuant to the provisions of Statement of Financial 
Statement Accounting Standards No. 109 “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under SFAS 
No. 109, deferred tax liabilities and assets are recognized for future tax consequences 
attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities and their tax bases. Any deferred tax assets recognized for net operating loss 
carry-forwards and other items are reduced by a valuation allowance when it is more likely 
than not that the benefits may not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in 
which those temporary differences are expected. The Company recognizes deferred tax 
assets to the extent that it believes that these assets are more likely than not to be 
realized. In making such a determination, the Company considers all available positive and 
negative evidence, including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, 
projected future taxable income, tax-planning strategies, and results of recent operations. 
If the Company determines that it would be able to realize its deferred tax assets in the 
future in excess of their net recorded amount, the Company would make an adjustment to 
the deferred tax asset valuation allowance, which would reduce the provision for income 
taxes. There are no material deferred tax liabilities as of June 30, 2023. The company has 
deferred tax asset as of the above date as per the provision available under Internal 
Revenue Code to carry forward net operating loss. The deferred tax assets as of June 30, 
2023 was $ 179,200. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Impairment of Assets - The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether 
there is any indication that any asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
carrying value of such assets is reduced to its recoverable amount and the amount of 
such impairment loss is charged to Income statement. If at the balance sheet date there is 
an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, then such loss 
is reversed and the asset is restated to that effect. 
 
Leases 
When the company is the lessee, all leases with a term of more than 12 months are 
recognized as right-of-use (ROU) assets and associated lease liabilities in the Balance 
Sheet. The lease liabilities are determined using the present value of the lease payments 
not yet paid and the company’s incremental borrowing rate, which approximates the rate 
at which the company would borrow on a secured basis in the country where the lease 
was executed. The interest rate implicit in the lease is generally not determinable in 
transactions where the company is the lessee. The ROU asset equals the lease liability 
adjusted for any initial direct costs (IDCs), prepaid rent and lease incentives. Operating 
leases are included in operating right-of-use assets–net and lease liabilities in the Balance 
Sheet. The lease term includes options to extend or terminate the lease when it is 
reasonably certain that the company will exercise that option. 
 
Note 2 – Advertising Costs   
 
The Company expenses advertising costs in the period incurred. The Company did not 
incur any advertising and business promotion expenses for the three months ended June 
30, 2023 was zero. 
 
Note 3 – Cash and Cash equivalents   

As of June 30, 2023, the Cash and cash equivalents was $ 1,780,842 

Note 4 – Property and equipment 
 
        As at June 30, 2023 
Computer equipment and software $ 112,646
Furniture & Fixtures 73,856
Vehicle 42,323
Other fixed assets 272,941
Total assets 501,766
Less: Accumulated depreciation (225,640)
Property and Equipment, net $ 276,126

 
The depreciation expense for the three months ended June 30, 2023 was $ 29,428. 
 
 
 

13



JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Note 5 – Prepaid Expenses 
On April 6, 2022, JNIT Technologies Inc (Licensee) entered into a Technology License 
agreement with Magellanic Cloud Limited (Licensor) to obtain a license for the technical 
know-how and IPR in the drone based technology solution/products on an exclusive basis. 
Summary of terms and conditions are as follows: 
 

 Licensee shall pay to licensor a royalty fee of 20% of the revenue derived from the 
sale of products subject to minimum of USD 425,000 per annum (net of any 
applicable taxes) 

 Licensor shall raise an invoice annually on March 31 for every calendar year for the 
royalty based on the audited revenue details provided by the licensee for the 
previous calendar year 

 Licensee shall pay an upfront advance payment of $ 4,250,000 which shall be 
adjusted against the payment due to the licensor under this agreement.  

 Upon termination of this agreement, the licensor shall after adjusting any royalty 
amount due under this agreement refund the balance amount to the licensee for the 
unexpired period of the term 

 The agreement commences from the effective date (April 6, 2022) and continue 
thereafter for a period of ten years unless extended in writing by the parties hereto 
for a further period of five years or terminated earlier in accordance with the terms 
and conditions as stipulated in the agreement.  

 The agreement may be terminated by mutual written consent of the parties hereto.  
 

 30-June-2023 
Drone Rights 4,250,000 
Less: Amortization of advance             (531,250) 
Balance advance  3,718,750 

  
Note 6 – Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Operating Lease:  
The Company adopted ASC 842 with effect from February 1, 2023. Lease assets and liabilities are 
determined predominantly as the present value of the payments due over the lease term. All 
leases are recognized as lease liabilities and lease assets on the balance sheet. Lease liabilities 
represent obligation to make payments arising from the lease. Lease assets represent right to use 
an underlying asset for the lease term.  
 
Information related to operating lease cost are as follows: 
 
 2023 
Operating lease cost              $                  43,142 
Right of use asset 222,832 
Lease liabilities 232,719 
Weighted average remaining lease term                                             1.4 Years 
Weighted average discount rate 5% 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

The following table presents undiscounted cash outflows for operating leases on annual basis for 
next five years and thereafter. 
 

                         As of June 30, 2023 
Less than one year $     173,676 
1-2 years 57,953 
Total $     231,628  

 
Security deposit related to lease for office premises as on June 30, 2023 $ 234,871. 
 
Note 7 – Income Taxes 
 
The Company has elected to be taxed as a “C” corporation under the provisions of the 
Internal Revenue Code and applicable state statutes.  Total tax provision as of June 30, 
2023 was $ 406,116. 
 
The company has Net Operating Loss under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code 
and has carried forward such losses. Deferred tax asset on Carried Forward Loss is $ 
111,697. 
  
Uncertain tax positions: As of the report date, the Company does not have any uncertain 
tax liabilities or benefits that could materially affect the effective tax rate. The tax years 
2022, 2021, 2020, and 2019 were open as of the report date. Management regularly 
assesses the tax risk of the Company’s return filing positions for all open years. 
 
Note 8 – Litigation and Contingencies  
 
The Company does not have any knowledge of any involvement in legal proceedings, 
either of which the company has initiated or has been brought against it. The company’s 
liability, if any, have been reported on the balance sheet and have no knowledge of any 
further liabilities or contingencies. 
 
Note 9 – Line of Credit 
 
On March 29, 2022, JNIT Technologies Inc, Motivity Labs Inc and RPR WYATT Inc (Collectively 
referred to as “Borrowers”), have secured $ 3,500,000 Line of credit with Patriot Bank. The 
revolving loan facility was utilized to refinance existing indebtedness of Borrowers with City 
National Bank and for working capital and general corporate purposes. Each borrower is jointly and 
severally liable and has provided absolute and unconditional guarantee to Lender for prompt 
payment and performance of all obligations. The Interest on Revolving loan facility shall bear 
interest on the outstanding principal amount at the base rate, which is greater of prime rate as 
quoted by The Wall Street Journal plus 0.4% and 3.65% per annum. The line of credit matures on 
December 31, 2023. The balance outstanding as of June 30, 2023 was $ 2,359,100. The Interest 
expense for three months ended June 30, 2023 was $ 67,185. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Note 10 – Term Loan 
 
On March 29, 2022, JNIT Technologies Inc, Motivity Labs Inc and RPR WYATT Inc (Collectively 
referred to as “Borrowers”) entered into an agreement with Patriot Bank (referred to as “Lender”) 
and obtained a term loan for $ 1,500,000 at the interest rate of 3.81%. The term loan was utilized 
for repayment of existing indebtedness incurred for acquisition of Motivity Labs Inc. The term loan 
is repayable in sixty consecutive monthly installments of principal and interest in the amount of $ 
27,494.06 each commencing from May 1, 2022. Each borrower is jointly and severally liable and 
has provided absolute and unconditional guarantee to Lender for prompt payment and 
performance of all obligations. The borrowers have granted lien to all assets as collateral security 
for the payment and performance of all the obligations. The financial Covenants pertaining to the 
term loan are as follows: 
 

a. Commencing with fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 maintain a combined debt service 
coverage ratio equal to or greater than 1.25 to 1 on an annual basis, determined as of each 
fiscal year end and 

b. Commencing with fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 maintain a debt to capital ratio 
equal to less than 0.75 to 1 on an annual basis, determined as of each fiscal year end. 

 
The balance outstanding as of June 30, 2023 was $ 1,151,943. Interest expense for three months 
ended June 30, 2023 was $ 11,720. 
 
Note 11 – Notes payable 
 
Company had acquired 100% stock in Motivity Labs Inc. for $ 5,640,000. The balance 
consideration payable towards the acquisition was $ 234,955 and is shown under Notes payable in 
Balance Sheet.  The company has obtained a term loan from Patriot Bank and used the proceeds 
to settle all dues outstanding as of Balance Sheet date towards acquisition. 
 
Note 12 – Stockholder’s Equity  
 
JNIT Technologies INC is authorized to issue 1,000 shares of no par value. The common 
stocks issued and outstanding were owned by the following share holder: 
 

               June 30, 2023 

Balance, beginning of the period $    236,259 

Balance, end of the period        $    236,259 

 
Effective February 22, 2017, Magellanic Cloud Limited (formerly known as South India 
Projects Limited) has acquired all the outstanding common stock of JNIT Technologies Inc 
from the erstwhile shareholders of the Company. This acquisition was effected through a 
stock swap with the erstwhile shareholders of JNIT Technologies Inc getting shares in 
South India Projects Limited in exchange for shares in the Company. There was no cash 
component involved as part of the stock swap.  
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

The entire issued capital of Motivity Labs Inc was held by JNIT technologies Inc and the 
entire issued capital of Motivity Labs Pvt Ltd was held by Motivity Labs Inc.  
 
Note 13 – Related party transactions 
 
In the ordinary course of business, the Company entered into transactions with entities 
owned directly/indirectly by the stockholder. All the amount is non-interest bearing and is 
repayable/recoverable on demand. The Balances as of June 30, 2023 are as follows: 
 

Related Party 
Expenses Accounts 

receivable 
Accounts 
payable 

Loan 
Given 

Advance 
Given 

Rights/Pre 
paid 

JNITH Corporation (RPR 
Wyatt) 

 26,419  
 

- - 

JNIT Technologies India 
Pvt. Ltd. 

28,000   
- 

 
- 

Aitech Corp  232,500  - - 
Sygntech Systems Inc   3,116 - - - 
Hoozin Inc  80,040     
Motivity Labs Inc  151,656  2,000,000 - - 
Magellanic Cloud Limited 
- Drone 

106,250   
  3,718,750 

 
Note 14– EIDL 
 
The Company had obtained loan from U.S. Small Business Administration under section 7(b) of 
the Small Business Act during calendar year 2020. The details pertaining to EIDL are as follows: 
 
Entity Date of 

Grant 
Amount Terms and Conditions 

JNIT Technologies 
Inc 

January 12, 
2022 

$ 4,000,000  Installment payment (including principal 
and interest) of $ 20,596 will begin 24 
months from date of the promissory note 

 The balance of principal and interest will 
be payable in thirty years from the date of 
the promissory note 

 Interest will accrue at the rate of 3.75% 
per annum based on funds advanced. 

 The entity’s assets  will be given as 
collateral. 

 
Interest accrued for EIDL for twelve months ended June 30, 2023 was $ 37,500 (including the 
same value for Motivity Inc). 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Note 15 – Employee Retention Credit 
 
JNIT Inc. received $ 1,739,880 as Employee retention credit for two quarters for the calendar year 
ended December 31, 2021.The ERC Credit received has been disclosed under “Other liabilities” in 
the balance sheet. 
 
Note 16 – Retirement Benefits 
 
The Company adopted a Flexible 401(k)-profit sharing plan for its employee. There is an age and 
service period requirement for elective deferral eligibility. The employees are eligible to become 
participants following one year of employment, with at least 500 hours of service and should have 
attained a minimum of 21 years of age. The company can make matching contributions, based on 
its sole discretion as determined year to year. The company did not make any contributions during 
the three months ended June 30, 2023. 
   
Note 17 – Segment Revenues 
 
The Company's operations comprise only of consulting services and the financial statements 
reflect the performance for the segment as such. 
 
Note 18 – Subsequent Events 
 
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through August 09, 2023, the date on which the 
financial statements were available to be issued. The company does not have any other reportable 
events occurring after the balance sheet date. 
 
Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic: The COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020 had adversely affected the 
economic activity globally, nationally and locally. However, this has been a thing of the past due to 
which there has been no specific impact in the year ended 2022, although the recurrence of such 
an event may impact the business and profitability. 
 
The Management is not aware of any other matter or circumstance, other than those which are 
disclosed above or not otherwise dealt with in the Financial Statements that has significantly or 
may significantly affect the operations of the company in the subsequent years the financial effects 
of which has not been provided for as of the June 30, 2023. 
 
Note 19 – Risks and Uncertainties of Doing Business 
 
In addition to the Impact of COVID-19 pandemic discussed in the previous note, many of the 
Company’s engagements involve projects that are critical to the operations of its customers’ 
businesses and provide benefits that may be difficult to quantify. Any failure  
in a customer’s system could result in a claim for substantial damages against the Company, 
regardless of the Company’s responsibility for such failure. Although the Company attempts to limit 
contractually its liability for damages arising from errors, mistakes or omissions in rendering its 
information technology services, there can be no assurance that the limitations of liability set forth 
in its services contracts will be enforceable in all instances or would otherwise protect the 
Company from liability for damages. The successful assertion of one or more large claims against 
the Company that exceed available insurance coverage, or changes in the Company’s insurance 
policies, including premium increases or the imposition of large deductible or co-insurance 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

requirements, could adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition and results of 
operations. 
 
Note 20– Comparative statements  
 
Review of Consolidated Financial Statement has not been done for comparative periods and 
hence comparative financial statement has not been provided. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
CONSOLIDATED SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
 FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Cost of sales
Payroll and Benefits 5,428,260      

 Subcontractors expenses 945,043         
Travel expense 15,250           
Cost of Services Revenue 1,355,350      
Offshore expenses 81,575           

Total cost of sales 7,825,478$       

General  & adminstrative expenses
Automobile Expense 6,204             
Bank service charges 2,937             
Commission 9,009             
Contributions 3,837             
Dues and Subscriptions 40,023           
Insurance 102,796         
Legal and Professional Fees 1,132,127      
Marketing expense 59,397           
Office expenses 301,848         
Outside services 1,144,479      
Payroll processing fees 8,071             
Postage and Delivery 1,788             
Royalty Expense 106,250         
Rent Expenses 40,725           
Taxes and License 2,864             
Telephone 27,987           
Repairs and maintenance 2,243             
Travel 49,006           
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 21,550           

Total general  & adminstrative expenses 3,063,140$       

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF JUNE 30, 2023

Consolidated Eliminations
 JNIT 

Technologies 
 Motivity Labs 
,Inc 

 Motivity India 

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,780,842$          1,412,736            273,031               95,075                 
Accounts receivable, net 13,560,537          (191,656)              4,282,192            4,368,749            5,101,252            
Employee advances 115,882               115,882               -                       -                       
Accrued Interest 6,799                   -                       -                       6,799                   
Prepaid Expenses 4,186,581            3,876,500            287,500               22,581                 
Due from affliate -                       (2,000,000)           2,000,000            -                       -                       
Other Current Assets 3,375,381            219,435               1,770,000            1,385,946            

Total current assets 23,026,022          11,906,745          6,699,280            6,611,653            

Other Assets 
Deferred Tax Assets 179,200               125,257               -                       53,944                 
Security Deposits 237,197               1,000                   5,822                   230,375               

Total Other assets 416,398               126,256               5,822                   284,319               

Investments 550,000               (5,640,000)           5,640,000            550,000               -                       
Goodwill 5,640,000            5,640,000            -                       -                       -                       
Property and equipment,net 276,126               25,994                 0                          250,132               
Right - of - use asset 243,427               103,475               119,357               20,595                 

Total assets 30,151,973          17,802,471          7,374,459            7,166,699            

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 932,666               (191,656)              474,188               607,382               42,752                 
Accrued Payroll Liabilities 1,944,784            1,372,676            511,815               60,293                 
Current portion of long term loan 319,098               319,098               -                       -                       
Note Payable  - Current 234,955               234,955               -                       -                       
Line of credit 2,383,121            2,383,121            -                       -                       
Accrued Income taxes 406,116               (44,924)                451,040               -                       
Other Current Liabilities 2,592,587            -                       -                       2,592,587            
Current portion of lease obligations 173,676               63,907                 109,769               

Total current liabilities 8,987,003            4,803,022            1,680,006            2,695,632            

Other liabilities
EIDL Loan 4,217,945            2,110,585            2,107,360            -                       
Term loan 861,714               861,714               -                       -                       
Employee Retention Credit 1,739,881            1,739,881            -                       -                       
Due to affiliates 1,300,324            (2,000,000)           -                       2,000,000            1,300,324            
Long term portion of lease obligations 60,942                 44,101                 14,942                 1,899                   

Total other liabilities 8,180,806            4,756,281            4,122,302            1,302,223            

Stockholder's equity
Common Stock 236,259               1,150                   103,374               131,735               
Retained earnings 12,747,905          8,242,018            1,468,778            3,037,109            

Total Stockholder's equity 12,984,164          8,243,168            1,572,152            3,168,844            

Total liabilities &  Stockholder's equity 30,151,973          17,802,471          7,374,459            7,166,699            

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

 Consolidated Eliminations
 JNIT 

Technologies 
 Motivity Labs 
,Inc 

 Motivity India 

Revenue 
Consulting income 9,000,628$          (60,000)$       4,773,659           4,286,970           -                      
Revenue from Software Services 3,705,960           -                      -                      3,705,960           
Other income 73,133                -                      -                      73,133                

Total Revenue 12,779,721          4,773,659           4,286,970           3,779,093           

Cost of sales
Payroll and Benefits 5,428,260           2,442,516           1,543,147           1,442,597           

Subcontractors expenses 945,043              444,387              500,656              -                      

Travel expense 15,250                8,531                  6,719                  -                      

Cost of Services Revenue 1,355,350           (60,000)         -                      1,415,350           -                      

Offshore expenses 81,575                -                      81,575                -                      

Total Cost of Sales 7,825,478           2,895,433           3,547,447           1,442,597           
Gross Margin 4,954,243           1,878,225           739,522              2,336,496           

General & admininstrative expenses

Automobile Expense 6,204                  6,204                  -                      -                      
Bank service charges 2,937                     1,951                  579                     407                     
Commission 9,009                     -                      -                      9,009                  
Contributions 3,837                  -                      -                      3,837                  
Dues and Subscriptions 40,023                38,670                1,353                  -                      
Insurance 102,796              (5,450)                 63,803                44,442                
Legal and Professional Fees 1,132,127           58,540                11,520                1,062,067           
Marketing expense 59,397                -                      59,397                -                      
Office expenses 301,848              79,084                54,496                168,268              

Outside services 1,144,479           1,135,663           8,816                  -                      
Payroll processing fees 8,071                  5,758                  -                      2,313                  
Postage and Delivery 1,788                  1,072                  -                      716                     
Royalty Expense 106,250              106,250              -                      -                      
Rent Expenses 40,725                6,220                  10,792                23,713                
Taxes and License 2,864                  931                     189                     1,745                  
Telephone 27,987                12,771                540                     14,676                
Repairs and maintenance 2,243                  -                      -                      2,243                  
Travel 49,006                44,510                -                      4,496                  
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 21,550                -                      21,550                -                      

Total General & administrative expenses 3,063,140           1,492,172           233,035              1,337,933           

Income before income taxes 1,891,104           386,053              506,488              998,563              

Interest expense 136,501$            97,305                18,750                20,447                
Depreciation 29,428                2,718                  -                      26,710                
Interest expense - Lease liabilities 34,414                1,405                  1,659                  31,350                
Depreciation - Lease Assets 136,078              14,782                25,576                95,720                

Income before tax 1,554,683           269,843              460,503              824,336              

Income Taxes 424,427$            57,996                151,335              215,096              
Deferred Tax expense 110,393              73,292                42,119                (5,018)                 

Net Income 1,019,863           138,555              267,049              614,259              

Other Comprehensive Income 147,932              147,932              

Beginning retained earnings 11,652,641$        8,103,463           1,201,729           2,347,449           

Foreign currency translation reserve (72,531)$             (72,531)               

Ending retained earnings 12,747,905$        8,242,018           1,468,778           3,037,109           

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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VBC & COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountant 
A Professional Corporation 

97, Cedar Grove Lane, Suite 202, 
Somerset, NJ 08873 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder’s of, 
JNIT Technologies Inc 
Parlin, New Jersey 

We have reviewed the consolidated financial statements of JNIT technologies Inc (a New 
Jersey Corporation), and its subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as 
of September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 and the related consolidated statements of 
income and retained earnings, cash flows and changes in stockholder’s equity for each of the 
three month period September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the 
consolidated financial statements. We did not review the financial statements of Motivity Labs 
Private Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary), which statements reflect total assets of $ 
9,415,948 and $ 7,166,699 as of September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 respectively, total 
revenue of $ 3,792,715 and $ 3,779,093 and Net income of $ 522,934 and $ 614,259 for the 
three months ended September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 respectively. Those statements 
were reviewed by other auditors, whose report has been furnished to us and our review, 
insofar as it relates to the amounts included for Motivity Labs Private Limited, is based solely 
on the report of other auditors.  A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to 
management’s financial data and making inquiries of company’s management. A review is 
substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an 
opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such 
an opinion. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of 
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. 

Accountant’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagements in accordance with Statements on 
Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review 
Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to 
obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any material 
modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe 
that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion. 
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VBC & COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountant 
A Professional Corporation 

97, Cedar Grove Lane, Suite 202, 
Somerset, NJ 08873 

Accountant’s Conclusion  
Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made 
to the accompanying consolidated financial statements in order for them to be in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Other matter 
The supplementary information comprising of the consolidated supplementary schedules on 
cost of sales and general and administrative expenses are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such 
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
supplementary information has been subjected to the review procedures applied in our 
review of the basic financial statements. We are not aware of any material modifications that 
should be made to the supplementary information in relation to the accompanying reviewed 
financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

Balachander Venkataraman 
VBC & Company 
Certified Public Accountants 
Somerset, New Jersey 
November 09, 2023 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

 AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023  

September 30,  
2023

June 30,    
2023

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 780,377$         1,780,842$      
Accounts receivable, net 16,108,027      13,560,537      
Employee advances 126,352           115,882           
Accrued Interest 24,853             6,799               
Prepaid Expenses 4,064,576        4,186,581        
Other Current Assets 3,809,000        3,090,567        

Total current assets 24,913,185      22,741,208      

Other Assets 
Deferred Tax Assets 84,009             179,200           
Security Deposits 247,506           234,871           

Total Other assets 331,515           414,071           

Investments 550,000           550,000           
Goodwill 5,640,000        5,640,000        
Property and equipment,net 252,510           276,126           
Right - of - use asset 1,957,448        2,150,364        

Total assets 33,644,659$    31,771,769$    

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,654,548$      931,555$         
Accrued Payroll Liabilities 1,786,594        1,944,784        
Current portion of long term loan 319,098           319,098           
Note Payable  - Current 234,955           234,955           
Line of credit 2,384,179        2,383,121        
Accrued Income taxes 1,342,659        889,606           
Other Current Liabilities 1,606,288        1,843,388        
Current portion of lease obligations 173,676           173,676           

Total current liabilities 9,501,996        8,720,183        

Other liabilities:
EIDL Loan 4,255,445        4,217,945        
Term loan 790,031           861,714           
Employee Retention Credit 1,739,881        1,739,881        
Due to affiliates 903,306           1,300,324        
Long term portion of lease obligations 1,808,593        1,947,558        

Total other liabilities 9,497,257        10,067,422      

Stockholder's equity
Common Stock 236,259           236,259           
Retained earnings 14,389,904      12,672,504      
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 19,243             75,401             

Total Stockholder's equity 14,645,406      12,984,164      

Total liabilities &  Stockholder's equity 33,644,659$    31,771,769$    

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

 FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023

September 30, 
2023

June 30,       
2023

Revenue 
Consulting income 9,652,353$      9,000,628$      
Revenue from Software Services 2,499,879      3,705,960      
Other income 62,636          73,133          

Total Revenue 12,214,868      12,779,721      

Cost of sales 7,294,468      7,825,478      
General & admininstrative expenses 2,388,509      3,063,140      

Income from operations 2,531,891        1,891,104        

Interest expense 148,940         136,501         
Depreciation 32,398          29,428          
Interest expense - Lease liabilities 67,029          34,414          
Depreciation - Lease Assets 165,687         136,078         

Income before tax 2,117,838        1,554,683        

Income Taxes 306,114         424,427         
Deferred Tax expense 94,324          110,393         

Net Income 1,717,400        1,019,863        

Foreign Currency Translation Reserve (38,705)            10,866             
Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) (17,453)            (97,826)            

Total Comprehensive Income 1,661,242$      932,903$         

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

 FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023

September 30,  
2023

June 30,      
2023

Cash flow from operating activities
Net income after taxes 1,717,400$      1,019,863$     
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
used in operating activities:
Depreciation 32,398             29,428            
Depreciation  - Lease assets 232,716           170,492          
Other comprehensive income movement (17,453)            (97,826)           
Foreign currency translation reserve (38,705)            10,866            

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade and other receivables (2,547,490)       (3,230,860)      
Prepaid Expenses 122,005           135,994          
Net lease assets (178,766)          (155,611)         
Employee advances (10,470)            1,000              
Other assets (30,689)            13,061            
Other current assets (718,433)          2,090,642       
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities 722,993           (321,985)         
Accrued payroll and related costs (158,190)          390,243          
Deffered taxes 95,191             205,203          
Other current liabilities 215,953           203,112          

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities (561,539)          463,621          

Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of assets (8,782)              (1,058)             
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities (8,782)              (1,058)             

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings, net (430,143)          620,522          
Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities (430,143)          620,522          

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,000,464)       1,083,086       

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 1,780,842        697,756          
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 780,378$         1,780,842$     

Interest paid 69,864$           75,094$          
Taxes paid -$                 -$                

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023

September 30,  
2023

June 30,      
2023

Common stock 
Issued and outstanding: 

Balance, beginning of period 236,259$         236,259$        

Balance, end of period 236,259           236,259          

Retained Earnings
Balance, beginning of period 12,672,504      11,652,641     

Net Income 1,717,400        1,019,863       

Balance, end of period 14,389,904      12,672,504     

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income
Balance, beginning of period (72,531)            (83,397)           
Change in foreign currency transalation adjustment (38,705)            10,866            

Balance, end of period (111,236)          (72,531)           

Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) 130,479           147,932          

Total Sockholder's Equity 14,645,406$    12,984,164$   

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Note 1- Summary of significant accounting policies 
 
Nature of Operations – JNIT Technologies Inc. was incorporated as a New Jersey 
Corporation in August 2010, is engaged in providing software development and consulting 
services to various industries throughout the United States. The financial statements 
represent the consolidated financial statements of JNIT Technologies Inc, Motivity Labs, 
Inc. (subsidiary) and Motivity Labs Private Ltd (step down subsidiary - Incorporated in 
India). JNIT Technologies Inc along with its subsidiary and step-down subsidiary are 
collectively referred to as “the Company” in this report.  
 
Numerous factors affect the Company's operating results, including general economic 
conditions, market acceptance and demand for its consulting services, its ability to obtain 
new clients, and rapidly changing technologies and competition. The Company’s 
customer base covers a broad spectrum of industries including, Engineering, Financials, 
Information technologies, Manufacturing, Telecommunication among others.  
 
Accounting Policies – These financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepting in the United 
States of America (“GAAP”); consequently, revenues are accepted when services are 
rendered and expenses reflected when costs are incurred. 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk - The Company maintains cash in bank deposit accounts 
which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced 
any losses in such accounts. The Company believes it is not exposed to any significant 
credit risk on cash and cash equivalents. With respect to trade receivables, the Company 
generally does not require collateral because of the common business practice prevailing 
in the industry and also that majority of the Company's customers are fairly well 
established companies operating in a variety of industries and geographic regions. When 
necessary, the Company establishes an allowance for doubtful accounts based upon 
factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers, historical trends and other 
information.   
 
Use of Estimates - The Company's management makes estimates and assumptions in 
the preparation of its financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. These estimates and assumptions may affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities as of the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the respective reporting periods. Actual results could differ from 
those results implicit in the estimates and assumption. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits. 
The Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a remaining maturity 
principally of three months or less to be cash equivalents. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

The Company maintains its cash in a bank deposit account that, at times, may exceed 
federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts 
and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk. 
 
Financial Instruments - The Company's financial instruments including cash and cash 
equivalents, accrued expenses, accounts receivable, accounts payable and lines of credit 
debt, all of which approximate fair value at the balance sheet dates. 
 
Accounts receivable – Accounts receivable are generated from various commercial 
entities. Accounts receivable are stated at cost less an allowance for doubtful accounts if 
considered necessary. Credit is extended to customers after an evaluation of the 
customer’s financial condition, and generally collateral is not required. Management’s 
determination of the allowance for doubtful accounts is based on an evaluation of the 
accounts receivable, past experience, current economic conditions and other risks inherent 
in the accounts receivable portfolio.  
 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects the 
Company’s best estimate of probable losses inherent in the accounts receivable balance. 
We determine the allowance based on known troubled accounts, historical experience, 
and other currently available evidence.  Allowance for Doubtful accounts as on September 
30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 was $ 83,483 respectively. 
       

Revenue Recognition - The Company generates most of its revenues from Technology 
Staffing, and IT Services. Comprehensive revenue recognition model is designed to depict 
the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the 
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or 
services. Revenues are recognized as control of the promised service is transferred to 
customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration expected in exchange for the 
services. Revenues from contract assignments are recognized over time, based on hours 
worked by the Company’s contract professionals. The performance of the requested 
service over time is the single performance obligation for assignment revenues. Revenues 
are recognized net of variable consideration to the extent that it is probable that a 
significant reversal of revenues will not occur in subsequent periods.  
 
The Company recognizes most of its revenue on a gross basis when it acts as a principal 
in its transactions. The Company has direct contractual relationships with its customers, 
bears the risks and rewards of its arrangements, has the discretion to select the contract 
professionals and establish the price for the services to be provided. The Company 
primarily provides services through its employees and through subcontractors; the related 
costs are included in cost of sales. The Company includes billable expenses (out-of-pocket 
reimbursable expenses) in revenue and the associated expenses are included in cost of 
sales. Maintenance revenues, if any, are recognized ratably over the term of the 
underlying maintenance agreement.  
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Impact of New Accounting Standards - In May 2014, the FASB issued an update to 
ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, further amended in July 2015. This 
update to ASC 606 provides a five-step process to determine when and how revenue is 
recognized. The core principle of the guidance is that a Company should recognize 
revenue upon transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that 
reflects the expected consideration to be received in exchange for those goods or 
services. This update to ASC 606 will also result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, 
providing guidance for transactions that were not previously addressed comprehensively, 
and improving guidance for multiple-element arrangements. The Company has adopted 
Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, effective January 01, 2019. Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers, using the modified retrospective method. The adoption 
allows companies to apply the new revenue standard to reporting periods beginning in the 
year the standard is first implemented, while prior periods continue to be reported in 
accordance with previous accounting guidance. Since the adoption of Accounting 
Standards Codification (“ASC”) 606 did not have a significant impact on the recognition of 
revenue, the Company did not have an opening retained earnings adjustment. 
 
Cost of Revenues – are classified as cost of sales on the income statement and consist 
primarily of employee costs and sub-contractors’ costs, and other costs incurred in 
connection with the execution of projects. 

 
Unbilled Revenues – represents services rendered prior to being invoiced due to certain 
contractual restrictions. The Unbilled revenue as on September 30, 2023 and June 30, 
2023 was $ 4,220,000 and $ 2,480,000 respectively and is included under Accounts 
Receivable in the Balance sheet. 
   
Property and equipment – Property and equipment, consisting of computers, furniture, 
vehicle and equipment, are stated at cost. Improvements which substantially increase the 
useful lives of assets are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. 
Upon retirement or disposal, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed 
from the respective accounts and any gain or loss is recorded. Depreciation on all property 
and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives 
of the assets which range from three to five years. Depreciation expense for the three 
months ended September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 was $ 2,700 and $ 2,718 
respectively. 
 
Investment – The Company has characterized its investments in marketable securities, 
based on the priority of the inputs used to value the investments, into a three-level fair 
value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1), and lowest priority to unobservable 
inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to measure the investments fall within different levels of 
the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is significant to the 
fair value measurement of the instrument. Investments recorded in the accompanying 
balance sheets are categorized based on the inputs to valuation techniques as follows:  
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Level 1 – These are investments where values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for 
identical asset in an active market the Company has the ability to access.  
Level 2 – These are investments where values are based on quoted market prices that are 
not active or model derived valuations in which all significant inputs are observable in 
active markets. 
Level 3 – These are investments where values are derived from techniques in which one 
or more significant inputs are unobservable. 
September 30, 2023 
and June 30, 2023 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Investments - - $ 550,000 $ 550,000 
 
The Company had invested in a stock purchase of Motivity Labs on January 01, 2020. The 
total value of investment for 68% stock was $3,400,000, the Initial purchase price of which 
the company has made a payment of $1,360,000 (40%) of the purchase price and the 
balance amount $ 2,040,000 (60%) will be paid in Six installments of $340,000 every four 
months, commencing four months after the Closing Date. The installment payments will 
have interest at the rate of 6 % per annum after twelve months from the closing date. As 
per the agreement the Purchaser shall purchase all of the Remaining Shareholders’ 
shares of capital stock of the Company (the “Remaining Shares”) within eighteen (18) 
months from the date the agreement was entered. 
 
The Company has acquired the balance 32% stock in Motivity Labs Inc in January 2021, 
and thus owns 100% stock in Motivity Labs Inc. The total consideration was $ 5,640,000 
and was fully paid. 
 
Income Taxes – The Company is taxed as a “C” corporation and as such accounts for 
income taxes pursuant to the provisions of Statement of Financial Statement Accounting 
Standards No. 109 “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under SFAS No. 109, deferred tax 
liabilities and assets are recognized for future tax consequences attributable to differences 
between the financial statement carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax 
bases. Any deferred tax assets recognized for net operating loss carry-forwards and other 
items are reduced by a valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that the benefits 
may not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax 
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary 
differences are expected. The Company recognizes deferred tax assets to the extent that it 
believes that these assets are more likely than not to be realized. In making such a 
determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, 
including future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected future 
taxable income, tax-planning strategies, and results of recent operations. If the Company 
determines that it would be able to realize its deferred tax assets in the future in excess of 
their net recorded amount, the Company would make an adjustment to the deferred tax 
asset valuation allowance, which would reduce the provision for income taxes. There are 
no material deferred tax liabilities as of September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023. The 
company has deferred tax asset as of the above date as per the provision available under 
Internal Revenue Code to carry forward net operating loss. The deferred tax assets as of 
September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 was $ 13,560 and $ 125,257 respectively. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

 
Impairment of Assets - The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether 
there is any indication that any asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the 
carrying value of such assets is reduced to its recoverable amount and the amount of 
such impairment loss is charged to Income statement. If at the balance sheet date there is 
an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, then such loss 
is reversed and the asset is restated to that effect. 
 
Leases 
When the company is the lessee, all leases with a term of more than 12 months are 
recognized as right-of-use (ROU) assets and associated lease liabilities in the Balance 
Sheet. The lease liabilities are determined using the present value of the lease payments 
not yet paid and the company’s incremental borrowing rate, which approximates the rate 
at which the company would borrow on a secured basis in the country where the lease 
was executed. The interest rate implicit in the lease is generally not determinable in 
transactions where the company is the lessee. The ROU asset equals the lease liability 
adjusted for any initial direct costs (IDCs), prepaid rent and lease incentives. Operating 
leases are included in operating right-of-use assets–net and lease liabilities in the Balance 
Sheet. The lease term includes options to extend or terminate the lease when it is 
reasonably certain that the company will exercise that option. 
 
Note 2 – Advertising Costs   
 
The Company expenses advertising costs in the period incurred. The Company did not 
incur any advertising and business promotion expenses for the three months ended 
September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 was zero. 
 
Note 3 – Cash and Cash equivalents   

As of September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023, the Cash and cash equivalents was $ 
780,377 and $ 1,780,842 respectively. 

Note 4 – Property and equipment 
 As at September 

30, 2023 
       As at June 30, 

2023 
Computer equipment and software $ 112,646 $ 112,646
Furniture & Fixtures 73,856 73,856
Vehicle 42,323 42,323
Other fixed assets 22809 22,809
Total assets 251,634 251,634
Less: Accumulated depreciation (228,340) (225,640)
Property and Equipment, net $  23,294 $ 25,994
 
The depreciation expense for the three months ended September 30, 2023 and June 30, 
2023 was $ 2,700 and $ 2,718 respectively. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

 
Note 5 – Prepaid Expenses 
On April 6, 2022, JNIT Technologies Inc (Licensee) entered into a Technology License 
agreement with Magellanic Cloud Limited (Licensor) to obtain a license for the technical 
know-how and IPR in the drone based technology solution/products on an exclusive basis. 
Summary of terms and conditions are as follows: 
 

 Licensee shall pay to licensor a royalty fee of 20% of the revenue derived from the 
sale of products subject to minimum of USD 425,000 per annum (net of any 
applicable taxes) 

 Licensor shall raise an invoice annually on March 31 for every calendar year for the 
royalty based on the audited revenue details provided by the licensee for the 
previous calendar year 

 Licensee shall pay an upfront advance payment of $ 4,250,000 which shall be 
adjusted against the payment due to the licensor under this agreement.  

 Upon termination of this agreement, the licensor shall after adjusting any royalty 
amount due under this agreement refund the balance amount to the licensee for the 
unexpired period of the term 

 The agreement commences from the effective date (April 6, 2022) and continue 
thereafter for a period of ten years unless extended in writing by the parties hereto 
for a further period of five years or terminated earlier in accordance with the terms 
and conditions as stipulated in the agreement.  

 The agreement may be terminated by mutual written consent of the parties hereto.  
 
 30-September-2023 30-June-2023 
Drone Rights 4,250,000 4,250,000 
Less: Amortization of advance             (637,500)             (531,250) 
Balance advance  3,612,500 3,718,750 
  
Note 6 – Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Operating Lease:  
The Company adopted ASC 842 with effect from February 1, 2023. Lease assets and liabilities are 
determined predominantly as the present value of the payments due over the lease term. All 
leases are recognized as lease liabilities and lease assets on the balance sheet. Lease liabilities 
represent obligation to make payments arising from the lease. Lease assets represent right to use 
an underlying asset for the lease term.  
 
Information related to operating lease cost are as follows: 
 2023 
Operating lease cost              $  43,142 
Right of use asset 222,832 
Lease liabilities 232,719 
Weighted average remaining lease term                       1.4 Years 
Weighted average discount rate 5% 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

The following table presents undiscounted cash outflows for operating leases on annual basis for 
next five years and thereafter. 
 
 As of September 30, 2023 As of June 30, 2023 
Less than one year $      156,036 $     173,676 
1-2 years 32,450 57,953 
Total $      188,487 $     231,628  
 
Security deposit related to lease for office premises as on September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 
was $ 247,506 and $ 234,871. 
 
Note 7 – Income Taxes 
 
The Company has elected to be taxed as a “C” corporation under the provisions of the 
Internal Revenue Code and applicable state statutes.  Total tax provision as of September 
30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 was $ 682,199 and $ 406,116 respectively. 
 
The company has Net Operating Loss under the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code 
and has carried forward such losses. Deferred tax asset on Carried Forward Loss is $ 
13,560. 
  
Uncertain tax positions: As of the report date, the Company does not have any uncertain 
tax liabilities or benefits that could materially affect the effective tax rate. The tax years 
2022, 2021, 2020, were open as of the report date. Management regularly assesses the 
tax risk of the Company’s return filing positions for all open years. 
 
Note 8 – Litigation and Contingencies  
 
The Company does not have any knowledge of any involvement in legal proceedings, 
either of which the company has initiated or has been brought against it. The company’s 
liability, if any, have been reported on the balance sheet and have no knowledge of any 
further liabilities or contingencies. 
 
Note 9 – Line of Credit 
 
On March 29, 2022, JNIT Technologies Inc, Motivity Labs Inc and RPR WYATT Inc (Collectively 
referred to as “Borrowers”), have secured $ 3,500,000 Line of credit with Patriot Bank. The 
revolving loan facility was utilized to refinance existing indebtedness of Borrowers with City 
National Bank and for working capital and general corporate purposes. Each borrower is jointly and 
severally liable and has provided absolute and unconditional guarantee to Lender for prompt 
payment and performance of all obligations. The Interest on Revolving loan facility shall bear 
interest on the outstanding principal amount at the base rate, which is greater of prime rate as 
quoted by The Wall Street Journal plus 0.4% and 3.65% per annum. The line of credit matures on 
December 31, 2023. The balance outstanding as of September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 was $ 
2,384,179 and $ 2,383,121 respectively. The Interest expense for three months ended September 
30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 was $ 53,830 and $ 67,185 respectively. 
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FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Note 10 – Term Loan 
 
On March 29, 2022, JNIT Technologies Inc, Motivity Labs Inc and RPR WYATT Inc (Collectively 
referred to as “Borrowers”) entered into an agreement with Patriot Bank (referred to as “Lender”) 
and obtained a term loan for $ 1,500,000 at the interest rate of 3.81%. The term loan was utilized 
for repayment of existing indebtedness incurred for acquisition of Motivity Labs Inc. The term loan 
is repayable in sixty consecutive monthly installments of principal and interest in the amount of $ 
27,494.06 each commencing from May 1, 2022. Each borrower is jointly and severally liable and 
has provided absolute and unconditional guarantee to Lender for prompt payment and 
performance of all obligations. The borrowers have granted lien to all assets as collateral security 
for the payment and performance of all the obligations. The financial Covenants pertaining to the 
term loan are as follows: 
 

a. Commencing with fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 maintain a combined debt service 
coverage ratio equal to or greater than 1.25 to 1 on an annual basis, determined as of each 
fiscal year end and 

b. Commencing with fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 maintain a debt to capital ratio 
equal to less than 0.75 to 1 on an annual basis, determined as of each fiscal year end. 

 
The balance outstanding as of September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 was $ 1,109,129 and $ 
1,180,812 respectively. Interest expense for three months ended September 30, 2023 and June 
30, 2023 was $ 10,800 and $ 11,720 respectively. 
 
Note 11 – Notes payable 
 
Company had acquired 100% stock in Motivity Labs Inc. for $ 5,640,000. The balance 
consideration payable towards the acquisition was $ 234,955 and is shown under Notes payable in 
Balance Sheet.  The company has obtained a term loan from Patriot Bank and used the proceeds 
to settle all dues outstanding as of Balance Sheet date towards acquisition. 
 
Note 12 – Stockholder’s Equity  
 
JNIT Technologies INC is authorized to issue 1,000 shares of no par value. The common 
stocks issued and outstanding were owned by the following share holder: 

 September 30, 2023 June 30, 2023 

Balance, beginning of the period $    236,259 $    236,259 

Balance, end of the period        $    236,259        $    236,259 

 
Effective February 22, 2017, Magellanic Cloud Limited (formerly known as South India 
Projects Limited) has acquired all the outstanding common stock of JNIT Technologies Inc 
from the erstwhile shareholders of the Company. This acquisition was effected through a 
stock swap with the erstwhile shareholders of JNIT Technologies Inc getting shares in 
South India Projects Limited in exchange for shares in the Company. There was no cash 
component involved as part of the stock swap.  
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

The entire issued capital of Motivity Labs Inc was held by JNIT technologies Inc and the 
entire issued capital of Motivity Labs Pvt Ltd was held by Motivity Labs Inc.  
 
Note 13 – Related party transactions 
 
In the ordinary course of business, the Company entered into transactions with entities 
owned directly/indirectly by the stockholder. All the amount is non-interest bearing and is 
repayable/recoverable on demand. The Balances as of September 30, 2023 are as 
follows: 
 

Related Party 
Expenses Accounts 

receivable 
Accounts 
payable 

Loan 
Given 

Advance 
Given 

Rights/Pre 
paid 

JNITH Corporation (RPR 
Wyatt) 

 25,946  
 

  

JNIT Technologies India 
Pvt. Ltd. 

66,000   
   

Aitech Corp  547,500     
Sygntech Systems Inc   3,116    
Hoozin Inc  80,040     
Motivity Labs Inc  51,656  2,317,000   
Magellanic Cloud Limited 
- Drone 

212,500   
  3,612,500 

 
The Balances as of June 30, 2023 are as follows: 
 

Related Party 
Expenses Accounts 

receivable 
Accounts 
payable 

Loan 
Given 

Advance 
Given 

Rights/Pre 
paid 

JNITH Corporation (RPR 
Wyatt) 

 26,419  
   

JNIT Technologies India 
Pvt. Ltd. 

28,000   
   

Aitech Corp  232,500     
Sygntech Systems Inc   3,116    
Hoozin Inc  80,040     
Motivity Labs Inc  151,656  2,000,000   
Magellanic Cloud Limited 
- Drone 

106,250   
  3,718,750 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

17



JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Note 14– EIDL 
 
The Company had obtained loan from U.S. Small Business Administration under section 7(b) of 
the Small Business Act during calendar year 2020. The details pertaining to EIDL are as follows: 
 
Entity Date of 

Grant 
Amount Terms and Conditions 

JNIT Technologies 
Inc 

January 12, 
2022 

$ 4,000,000  Installment payment (including principal 
and interest) of $ 20,596 will begin 24 
months from date of the promissory note 

 The balance of principal and interest will 
be payable in thirty years from the date of 
the promissory note 

 Interest will accrue at the rate of 3.75% 
per annum based on funds advanced. 

 The entity’s assets  will be given as 
collateral. 

 
Interest accrued for EIDL for three months ended September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023 was $ 
18,750 and $ 18,750 (including the same value for Motivity Inc) respectively. 
 
Note 15 – Employee Retention Credit 
 
JNIT Inc. received $ 1,739,880 as Employee retention credit for two quarters for the calendar year 
ended December 31, 2021.The ERC Credit received has been disclosed under “Other liabilities” in 
the balance sheet. 
 
Note 16 – Retirement Benefits 
 
The Company adopted a Flexible 401(k)-profit sharing plan for its employee. There is an age and 
service period requirement for elective deferral eligibility. The employees are eligible to become 
participants following one year of employment, with at least 500 hours of service and should have 
attained a minimum of 21 years of age. The company can make matching contributions, based on 
its sole discretion as determined year to year. The company did not make any contributions during 
the three months ended September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023. 
   
Note 17 – Segment Revenues 
 
The Company's operations comprise only of consulting services and the financial statements 
reflect the performance for the segment as such. 
 
Note 18 – Subsequent Events 
 
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through November 09, 2023, the date on which 
the financial statements were available to be issued. The company does not have any other 
reportable events occurring after the balance sheet date. 
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FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023 

 

 

Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic: The COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020 had adversely affected the 
economic activity globally, nationally and locally. However, this has been a thing of the past due to 
which there has been no specific impact in the year ended 2022, although the recurrence of such 
an event may impact the business and profitability. 
 
The Management is not aware of any other matter or circumstance, other than those which are 
disclosed above or not otherwise dealt with in the Financial Statements that has significantly or 
may significantly affect the operations of the company in the subsequent years the financial effects 
of which has not been provided for as of the September 30, 2023 and June 30, 2023. 
 
Note 19 – Risks and Uncertainties of Doing Business 
 
In addition to the Impact of COVID-19 pandemic discussed in the previous note, many of the 
Company’s engagements involve projects that are critical to the operations of its customers’ 
businesses and provide benefits that may be difficult to quantify. Any failure  
in a customer’s system could result in a claim for substantial damages against the Company, 
regardless of the Company’s responsibility for such failure. Although the Company attempts to limit 
contractually its liability for damages arising from errors, mistakes or omissions in rendering its 
information technology services, there can be no assurance that the limitations of liability set forth 
in its services contracts will be enforceable in all instances or would otherwise protect the 
Company from liability for damages. The successful assertion of one or more large claims against 
the Company that exceed available insurance coverage, or changes in the Company’s insurance 
policies, including premium increases or the imposition of large deductible or co-insurance 
requirements, could adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition and results of 
operations. 
 
Note 20– Comparative statements  
 
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified as needed to confirm to current period’s 
presentation. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
CONSOLIDATED SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

 FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 AND JUNE 30, 2023

September 30,  
2023

June 30,      
2023

Other Income
Other Income 62,636$         73,133$        

Total Other Income 62,636$           73,133$          

Cost of sales
Payroll and Benefits 5,300,753$    5,428,260$   

 Subcontractors expenses 1,729,379      945,043        
Travel expense 3,221            15,250         
Cost of Services Revenue 175,000         1,355,350     
Offshore expenses 86,114          81,575         

Total cost of sales 7,294,468$      7,825,478$     

General  & adminstrative expenses
Automobile Expense 5,343$          6,204$         
Bank service charges 2,647            2,937           
Commission 10,720          9,009           
Contributions 3,835            3,837           
Dues and Subscriptions 1,856            40,023         
Insurance 113,915         102,796        
Legal and Professional Fees 1,368,737      1,132,127     
Marketing expense -                59,397         
Office expenses 189,539         301,848        
Outside services 495,011         1,144,479     
Payroll processing fees 7,980            8,071           
Postage and Delivery 357               1,788           
Royalty Expense 106,250         106,250        
Rent Expenses 15,487          40,725         
Taxes and License 1,028            2,864           
Telephone 26,505          27,987         
Repairs and maintenance 4,917            2,243           
Travel 34,382          49,006         
Provision for bad and doubtful debts -                21,550         

Total general  & adminstrative expenses 2,388,509$      3,063,140$     

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
20



JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

AS OF SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Consolidated Eliminations
 JNIT 

Technologies 
 Motivity Labs 

,Inc 
 Motivity India 

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 780,377$           345,852             403,873             30,653               
Accounts receivable, net 16,108,027        (51,656)              4,296,068          6,468,386          5,395,229          
Employee advances 126,352             118,382             -                     7,970                 
Accrued Interest 24,853               -                     -                     24,853               
Prepaid Expenses 4,064,576          3,770,250          187,500             106,826             
Due from affliate -                     (2,317,000)         2,317,000          -                     -                     
Other Current Assets 3,809,000          974,505             1,595,000          1,239,495          

Total current assets 24,913,185        11,822,057        8,654,758          6,805,026          

Other Assets 
Deferred Tax Assets 84,009               13,560               -                     70,449               
Security Deposits 247,506             1,000                 5,822                 240,684             

Total Other assets 331,515             14,559               5,822                 311,133             

Investments 550,000             (5,640,000)         5,640,000          550,000             -                     
Goodwill 5,640,000          5,640,000          -                     -                     -                     
Property and equipment,net 252,510             23,294               0                        229,216             
Right - of - use asset 1,957,448          88,693               93,781               1,774,974          

Total assets 33,644,659$      17,588,604$      9,304,362$        9,120,349$        

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 1,654,548$        (51,656)              234,713$           946,947$           524,544$           
Accrued Payroll Liabilities 1,786,594          1,207,501          579,093             -                     
Current portion of long term loan 319,098             319,098             -                     -                     
Note Payable  - Current 234,955             234,955             -                     -                     
Line of credit 2,384,179          2,384,179          -                     -                     
Accrued Income taxes 1,342,659          196,181             486,018             660,460             
Other Current Liabilities 1,606,288          -                     -                     1,606,288          
Current portion of lease obligations 173,676             63,907               109,769             

Total current liabilities 9,501,996          4,640,533          2,121,828          2,791,292          

Other liabilities
EIDL Loan 4,255,445          2,129,335          2,126,110          -                     
Term loan 790,031             790,031             -                     -                     
Employee Retention Credit 1,739,881          1,739,881          -                     -                     
Due to affiliates 903,306             (2,317,000)         -                     2,317,000          903,306             
Long term portion of lease obligations 1,808,593          29,430               (10,968)              1,790,131          

Total other liabilities 9,497,257          4,688,677          4,432,142          2,693,438          

Stockholder's equity
Common Stock 236,259             1,150                 103,374             131,735             
Retained earnings 14,409,146        8,258,243          2,647,018          3,503,885          

Total Stockholder's equity 14,645,406        8,259,393          2,750,392          3,635,620          

Total liabilities &  Stockholder's equity 33,644,659$      17,588,604$      9,304,362$        9,120,349$        

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 Consolidated Eliminations
 JNIT 

Technologies 
 Motivity Labs 
,Inc 

 Motivity India 

Revenue 
Consulting income 9,652,353$        (60,000)$            3,562,273$        6,150,080$        -$  
Revenue from Software Services 2,499,879          (1,230,200)$       - - 3,730,079          
Other income 62,636 - - 62,636 

Total Revenue 12,214,868        3,562,273          6,150,080          3,792,715          

Cost of sales
Payroll and Benefits 5,300,753          2,213,141          1,738,759          1,348,853          

Subcontractors expenses 1,729,379          (60,000)$            347,151             1,442,228          - 

Travel expense 3,221 2,093 1,128 - 

Cost of Services Revenue 175,000             (1,230,200)         - 1,405,200 - 

Offshore expenses 86,114 - 86,114 - 

Total Cost of Sales 7,294,468          2,562,385          4,673,429          1,348,853          
Gross Margin 4,920,400          999,888             1,476,651          2,443,862          

General & admininstrative expenses

Automobile Expense 5,343 5,343 - - 
Bank service charges 2,647 1,390 792 465 
Commission 10,720 - - 10,720 
Contributions 3,835 - - 3,835 
Dues and Subscriptions 1,856 86 1,770 - 
Insurance 113,915             2,787 104,197             6,931 
Legal and Professional Fees 1,368,737          26,365 3,990 1,338,382          
Office expenses 189,539             60,688 27,918 100,933             

Outside services 495,011             414,280             80,731 - 
Payroll processing fees 7,980 5,920 - 2,060 
Postage and Delivery 357 357 - -
Royalty Expense 106,250             106,250             - -
Rent Expenses 15,487 13,339 532 1,616 
Taxes and License 1,028 - - 1,028 
Telephone 26,505 10,593 540 15,372 
Repairs and maintenance 4,917 - - 4,917 
Travel 34,382 27,469 - 6,913 

Total General & administrative expenses 2,388,509          674,866             220,471             1,493,172          

Income before income taxes 2,531,891          325,022             1,256,180          950,690             

Interest expense 148,940             89,448 18,750 40,742 
Depreciation 32,398 2,700 - 29,698 
Interest expense - Lease liabilities 67,029 1,223 1,338 64,468 
Depreciation - Lease Assets 165,687             14,782 25,576 125,329 

Income before tax 2,117,838          216,869             1,210,516          690,453             

Income Taxes 306,114             88,947 32,275 184,891             
Deferred Tax expense 94,324 111,697             - (17,373) 

Net Income 1,717,400          16,225 1,178,241          522,934             

Other Comprehensive Income 130,479             130,479             

Beginning retained earnings 12,672,504        8,242,018          1,468,778          2,961,708          

Foreign currency translation reserve (111,236)            (111,236)            

Ending retained earnings 14,409,146$      8,258,243$        2,647,018$        3,503,885$        

(See Independent accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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VBC & COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountant 
A Professional Corporation 

97, Cedar Grove Lane, Suite 202, 
Somerset, NJ 08873 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder’s of, 
JNIT Technologies Inc 
Parlin, New Jersey 

We have reviewed the financial statements of JNIT technologies Inc (a New Jersey 
Corporation), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and September 
30, 2023 and the related statements of income and retained earnings, cash flows and 
changes in stockholder’s equity for the three month period December 31, 2023 and 
September 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes 
primarily applying analytical procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries 
of company’s management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the 
objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a 
whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. 

Accountant’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagements in accordance with Statements on 
Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review 
Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to 
obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any material 
modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe 
that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion. 
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VBC & COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountant 
A Professional Corporation 

97, Cedar Grove Lane, Suite 202, 
Somerset, NJ 08873 

 
 

Accountant’s Conclusion  
Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made 
to the accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Other matter 
The supplementary information comprising of the supplementary schedules on cost of sales 
and general and administrative expenses are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The supplementary 
information has been subjected to the review procedures applied in our review of the basic 
financial statements. We are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to 
the supplementary information in relation to the accompanying reviewed financial statements 
in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 
 

 
 
Balachander Venkataraman 
VBC & Company 
Certified Public Accountants 
Somerset, New Jersey 
February 12, 2024 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC.
 BALANCE SHEETS 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 Dec 31, 2023  Sep 30, 2023

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 125,856$         345,852$         
Accounts receivable, net 5,076,182        3,501,068        
Unbilled Revenue 740,000           795,000           
Employee advances 118,382           118,382           
Prepaid Expenses 3,506,250        3,770,250        
Due from affliate 1,724,000        2,317,000        
Other Current Assets 402,816           974,505           

Total current assets 11,693,486      11,822,057      

Other Assets
Deferred Tax Assets 17,952             13,560             
Security deposits 1,000 1,000 

Total Other assets 18,952             14,559             

Investments 5,640,000        5,640,000        
Property and equipment,net 20,594             23,294             
Right - of - use asset 73,911             88,693             

Total assets 17,446,944$    17,588,604$    

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 514,716$         234,713$         
Accrued Payroll Liabilities 531,419           1,207,501        
Current portion of long term loan 295,797           319,098           
Line of credit 2,383,595        2,384,179        
Accrued Income taxes 300,808           196,181           
Note Payable  - Current 234,955           234,955           
Current portion of lease obligations 62,324             63,907             

Total current liabilities 4,323,614        4,640,533        

Other liabilities
EIDL Loan 2,148,085        2,129,335        
Term loan 741,093           790,031           
Employee Retention Credit 1,739,881        1,739,881        
Long term portion of lease obligations 16,158             29,430             

Total other liabilities 4,645,217        4,688,677        

Stockholder's equity

Common Stock 1,150 1,150 
Retained earnings 8,476,962        8,258,243        

Total Stockholder's equity 8,478,112        8,259,393        

Total liabilities &  Stockholder's equity 17,446,944$    17,588,604$    

(See accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC.
 STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 Dec 31, 2023  Sep 30, 2023

Revenue 
Consulting Income 4,754,681$     3,562,273$         

Total Revenue 4,754,681       3,562,273           

Cost of sales 3,953,931       2,976,665           

Gross Profit 800,750          585,608              

General and administrative expenses 315,519          260,586              

Income before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 485,231          325,022              

Interest expense 88,813             89,448 
Interest expense - Lease liabilities 1,039               1,223 
Depreciation 2,700               2,700 
Depreciation - Lease Assets 14,782             14,782 

Income before tax 377,897          216,869              

Income Taxes 163,571          88,947 
Deferred Income tax (4,393)             111,697              

Net Income 218,719$        16,225$              

(See accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)

6



JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC.
 STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 Dec 31, 2023  Sep 30, 2023

Cash flow from operating activities

Net income 218,719$         16,225$           

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 2,700               2,700               

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Trade and other receivables (1,520,114)      (13,876)           
Loans and Advances -                  (2,500)             
Other current assets 1,164,689        (1,072,070)      
Net lease assets (73)                  111                  
Prepaid Expenses 264,000           106,250           
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities           (272,701)           (144,796)
Deferred Tax Assets (4,393)             111,697           

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities (147,173)         (996,259)         

Cash flow from investing activities

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities -                  -                  

Cash flow from financing activities

Repayment of Term Loan (72,239)           (71,683)           
Line of credit (583)                1,057               

Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities (72,823)           (70,625)           

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (219,995)         (1,066,884)      

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 345,852           1,412,736        

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 125,856$         345,852$         

Interest paid 70,646$           69,863$           
Taxes paid 70,705$           -$                

(See accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

FOR THE THREE  MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 Dec 31, 2023  Sep 30, 2023

Common stock and paid-in capital
Balance, beginning of period 1,150$             1,150$             
Addition during the year

Balance, end of period 1,150               1,150               

Retained earnings
Balance, beginning of period 8,258,243        8,242,018        

Net Income 218,719           16,225             

Balance, end of period 8,476,962        8,258,243        

Total Stockholder's equity 8,478,112$      8,259,393$      

(See accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

Note 1- Summary of significant accounting policies 

Nature of Operations – JNIT Technologies Inc. was incorporated as a New Jersey Corporation in 
August 2010, is engaged in providing software development and consulting services to various 
industries throughout the United States.  

Numerous factors affect the Company's operating results, including general economic conditions, 
market acceptance and demand for its Consulting services, its ability to obtain new clients, and 
rapidly changing technologies and competition. The Company’s customer base covers a broad 
spectrum of industries including, Engineering, Financials, Information technologies, 
Manufacturing, Telecommunication among others.  

Accounting Policies – These financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepting in the United States of 
America (“GAAP”); consequently, revenues are accepted when services are rendered and 
expenses reflected when costs are incurred. 

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Company maintains cash in bank deposit accounts which, at 
times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such 
accounts. The Company believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash 
equivalents. With respect to trade receivables, the Company generally does not require collateral 
because of the common business practice prevailing in the industry and also that majority of the 
Company's customers are fairly well established companies operating in a variety of industries and 
geographic regions. When necessary, the Company establishes an allowance for doubtful 
accounts based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers, historical trends and 
other information.   

Use of Estimates - The Company's management makes estimates and assumptions in the 
preparation of its financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. These estimates and assumptions may affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the respective 
reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those results implicit in the estimates and 
assumption. 

Cash and cash equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits. The 
Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a remaining maturity principally of 
three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

The Company maintains its cash in a bank deposit account that, at times, may exceed federally 
insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is 
not exposed to any significant credit risk. 

Financial Instruments - The Company's financial instruments including cash and cash 
equivalents, accrued expenses, accounts receivable, accounts payable and lines of credit debt, all 
of which approximate fair value at the balance sheet dates. 

Accounts receivable – Accounts receivable are generated from various commercial entities. 
Accounts receivable are stated at cost less an allowance for doubtful accounts if considered 
necessary. Credit is extended to customers after an evaluation of the customer’s financial 
condition, and generally collateral is not required. Management’s determination of the allowance 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

for doubtful accounts is based on an evaluation of the accounts receivable, past experience, 
current economic conditions and other risks inherent in the accounts receivable portfolio.  

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects the Company’s 
best estimate of probable losses inherent in the accounts receivable balance. We determine the 
allowance based on known troubled accounts, historical experience, and other currently available 
evidence.  Allowance for Doubtful accounts as on December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 
was $ 83,483 respectively. 

Revenue Recognition - In May 2014, the FASB issued an update to ASC 606, Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers, further amended in July 2015. This update to ASC 606 provides a five-
step process to determine when and how revenue is recognized. The core principle of the 
guidance is that a Company should recognize revenue upon transfer of promised goods or 
services to customers in an amount that reflects the expected consideration to be received in 
exchange for those goods or services. This update to ASC 606 will also result in enhanced 
disclosures about revenue, providing guidance for transactions that were not previously addressed 
comprehensively, and improving guidance for multiple-element arrangements. Effective January 
01, 2019, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers, using the modified retrospective method. The adoption allows 
companies to apply the new revenue standard to reporting periods beginning in the year the 
standard is first implemented, while prior periods continue to be reported in accordance with 
previous accounting guidance. Since the adoption of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 
606 did not have a significant impact on the recognition of revenue, the Company did not have an 
opening retained earnings adjustment. 

The Company generates most of its revenues from Technology Staffing, and IT Services. 
Comprehensive revenue recognition model is designed to depict the transfer of promised goods or 
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenues are recognized as control of the 
promised service is transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration expected 
in exchange for the services. Revenues from contract assignments are recognized over time, 
based on hours worked by the Company’s contract professionals. The performance of the 
requested service over time is the single performance obligation for assignment revenues. 
Revenues are recognized net of variable consideration to the extent that it is probable that a 
significant reversal of revenues will not occur in subsequent periods. The Company recognizes 
revenue for fixed-price contracts using percentage of completion method. Under this method of 
revenue recognition, the Company estimates the progress towards completion to determine the 
amount of revenue and profit to recognize on all significant contracts. The Company utilizes a cost-
to-cost approach in applying the percentage-of-completion method, under which revenue is earned 
in proportion to total costs incurred, divided by total costs expected to be incurred. The recognition 
of profit is dependent upon the accuracy of a variety of estimates, including software development 
progress, achievement of milestones and other incentives, penalty provisions, labor productivity 
and cost estimates. Such estimates are based on various judgments that the Company makes with 
respect to those factors and are difficult to accurately determine until the project is significantly 
underway. Due to uncertainties, inherent in the estimation process, it is possible that actual 
completion costs may vary from estimates. If estimated total costs on any contract indicate a loss, 
the Company charges the entire estimated loss to operations in the period the loss first becomes 
known. Maintenance revenues are recognized ratably over the term of the underlying maintenance 
agreement. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

The Company recognizes most of its revenue on a gross basis when it acts as a principal in its 
transactions. The Company has direct contractual relationships with its customers, bears the risks 
and rewards of its arrangements, has the discretion to select the contract professionals and 
establish the price for the services to be provided. The Company primarily provides services 
through its employees and through subcontractors; the related costs are included in cost of sales. 
The Company includes billable expenses (out-of-pocket reimbursable expenses) in revenue and 
the associated expenses are included in cost of sales. 

Cost of Revenues – are classified as cost of sales on the income statement and consist primarily 
of employee costs and sub-contractors’ costs, and other costs incurred in connection with the 
execution of projects. 

Unbilled Revenues – represents services rendered prior to being invoiced due to certain 
contractual restrictions. The Unbilled revenue as on December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 
was $ 740,000 and $ 795,000 respectively and is included under Accounts Receivable in the 
Balance sheet. 

Property and equipment – Property and equipment, consisting of computers, furniture, vehicle 
and equipment, are stated at cost. Improvements which substantially increase the useful lives of 
assets are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Upon retirement or 
disposal, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts 
and any gain or loss is recorded. Depreciation on all property and equipment is calculated using 
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which range from three to five 
years. Depreciation expense for the three months ended December 31, 2023 and September 30, 
2023 was $ 2,700. 

Investment – The Company has characterized its investments in marketable securities, based on 
the priority of the inputs used to value the investments, into a three-level fair value hierarchy. The 
fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities (Level 1), and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to 
measure the investments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument. 
Investments recorded in the accompanying balance sheets are categorized based on the inputs to 
valuation techniques as follows:  

Level 1 – These are investments where values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical 
asset in an active market the Company has the ability to access.  
Level 2 – These are investments where values are based on quoted market prices that are not 
active or model derived valuations in which all significant inputs are observable in active markets. 
Level 3 – These are investments where values are derived from techniques in which one or more 
significant inputs are unobservable. 

The Company had invested in a stock purchase of Motivity Labs on January 01, 2020. The total 
value of investment for 68% stock was $ 3,400,000, the Initial purchase price of which the 
company has made a payment of $ 1,360,000 (40%) of the purchase price and the balance 
amount $ 2,040,000 (60%) will be paid in Six installments of $ 340,000 every four months, 
commencing four months after the Closing Date. The installment payments will have interest at the 
rate of 6 % per annum after twelve months from the closing date. As per the agreement the 
Purchaser shall purchase all of the Remaining Shareholders’ shares of capital stock of the 
Company (the “Remaining Shares”) within eighteen (18) months from the date the agreement was 
entered. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

The Company had acquired the balance 32% stock in Motivity Labs Inc in January 2021, and thus 
owns 100% stock in Motivity Labs Inc.  

Income Taxes – The Company is taxed as a “C” corporation and as such accounts for income 
taxes pursuant to the provisions of Statement of Financial Statement Accounting Standards No. 
109 “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under SFAS No. 109, deferred tax liabilities and assets are 
recognized for future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Any deferred tax assets recognized 
for net operating loss carry-forwards and other items are reduced by a valuation allowance when it 
is more likely than not that the benefits may not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those 
temporary differences are expected. The Company recognizes deferred tax assets to the extent 
that it believes that these assets are more likely than not to be realized. In making such a 
determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, including 
future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax-
planning strategies, and results of recent operations. If the Company determines that it would be 
able to realize its deferred tax assets in the future in excess of their net recorded amount, the 
Company would make an adjustment to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance, which would 
reduce the provision for income taxes. There are no material deferred tax liabilities as of December 
31, 2023 and September 30, 2023. The company has deferred tax asset as of the above date as 
per the provision available under Internal Revenue Code to carry forward net operating loss. The 
deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 was $ 17,952 and $ 13,560 
respectively. 

Impairment of Assets - The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any 
indication that any asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the carrying value of such 
assets is reduced to its recoverable amount and the amount of such impairment loss is charged to 
Income statement. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed 
impairment loss no longer exists, then such loss is reversed and the asset is restated to that 
effect. 

Leases 
When the company is the lessee, all leases with a term of more than 12 months are recognized as 
right-of-use (ROU) assets and associated lease liabilities in the Balance Sheet. The lease 
liabilities are determined using the present value of the lease payments not yet paid and the 
company’s incremental borrowing rate, which approximates the rate at which the company would 
borrow on a secured basis in the country where the lease was executed. The interest rate implicit 
in the lease is generally not determinable in transactions where the company is the lessee. The 
ROU asset equals the lease liability adjusted for any initial direct costs (IDCs), prepaid rent and 
lease incentives. Operating leases are included in operating right-of-use assets–net and lease 
liabilities in the Balance Sheet. The lease term includes options to extend or terminate the lease 
when it is reasonably certain that the company will exercise that option. 

Note 2 – Advertising Costs   

The Company expenses advertising costs in the period incurred. The Company did not incur any 
advertising and business promotion expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2023 and 
September 30, 2023. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

 

Note 3 – Cash and Cash equivalents  

As of December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023, the Cash and cash equivalents was $ 125,856 
and $ 345,852 respectively. 

Note 4 – Property and equipment 
 
 As at December 31,  

2023 
As at September 30, 

2023 
Computer equipment and software                 $     112,646                $     112,646 
Furniture & Fixtures                          57,614                         57,614 
Vehicle                          42,323                         42,323 
Total assets                        212,583                       212,583 
Less: Accumulated depreciation                      (178,781)                     (189,288) 
Property and Equipment, net                 $       20,594                $       23,294 
 
The depreciation expense for the three months ended December 31, 2023 and September 30, 
2023 was $ 2,700 respectively. 
 
Note 5 – Prepaid Expenses 
 
On April 6, 2022, JNIT Technologies Inc (Licensee) entered into a Technology License agreement 
with Magellanic Cloud Limited (Licensor) to obtain a license for the technical know-how and IPR in 
the drone based technology solution/products on an exclusive basis. Summary of terms and 
conditions are as follows: 
 

 Licensee shall pay to licensor a royalty fee of 20% of the revenue derived from the sale of 
products subject to minimum of USD 425,000 per annum (net of any applicable taxes) 

 Licensor shall raise an invoice annually on March 31 for every calendar year for the royalty 
based on the audited revenue details provided by the licensee for the previous calendar 
year 

 Licensee shall pay an upfront advance payment of $ 4,250,000 which shall be adjusted 
against the payment due to the licensor under this agreement.  

 Upon termination of this agreement, the licensor shall after adjusting any royalty amount 
due under this agreement refund the balance amount to the licensee for the unexpired 
period of the term 

 The agreement commences from the effective date (April 6, 2022) and continue thereafter 
for a period of ten years unless extended in writing by the parties hereto for a further period 
of five years or terminated earlier in accordance with the terms and conditions as stipulated 
in the agreement.  

 The agreement may be terminated by mutual written consent of the parties hereto.  
 
 As of December 31, 

2023 
As of September 30, 

2023 
Drone Rights $  4,250,000 $  4,250,000 
Less: Amortization             (743,750)             (637,500) 
Balance advance  $  3,506,250 $  3,612,500 
  
 

13



JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

 

Note 6 – Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Operating Lease:  
The Company adopted ASC 842 with effect from February 1, 2023. Lease assets and liabilities are 
determined predominantly as the present value of the payments due over the lease term. All 
leases are recognized as lease liabilities and lease assets on the balance sheet. Lease liabilities 
represent obligation to make payments arising from the lease. Lease assets represent right to use 
an underlying asset for the lease term.  
Information related to operating lease cost are as follows: 
 2023 
Operating lease cost              $  15,894 
Right of use asset 73,910 
Lease liabilities 78,481 
Weighted average remaining lease term                  1.25 Years 
Weighted average discount rate 5% 
 
The following table presents undiscounted cash outflows for operating leases on annual basis for 
next five years and thereafter. 
 
 As of December 31, 

2023 
As of September 30, 

2023 
Within one year $      64,569 $     64,238 
1-2 years 16,225 32,450 
2-3 years - - 
3-4 years - - 
4-5 years - - 
More than 5 years - - 
Total $      80,795 $     96,689  
 
Security deposit related to lease for office premises as on December 31, 2023 and September 30, 
2023 was $ 1,000. 
 
Note 7 – Income Taxes 
 
The Company has elected to be taxed as a “C” corporation under the provisions of the Internal 
Revenue Code and applicable state statutes.  The components of provision for taxes is as follows: 
 
 Quarter ended December 31, 

2023 
Quarter ended September 30, 

2023 
Federal Income tax $   146,492 $     99,812 
State tax 17,079 41,293 
   
Income tax expense 163,571 141,105 
   
Deferred tax expense/(Credit) (4,393) 111,697 
Prior year taxes  (52,158) 
Total Income tax expense $  159,178 $  200,644 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

 

Components of deferred tax asset is as follows: 
 
 Quarter ended December 31, 

2023 
Quarter ended September 30, 

2023 
Depreciation $        421 $    (3,971) 
Provision for doubtful debts 17,531 17,531 
   
Deferred tax Asset $   17,593 $   13,560 
 
Uncertain tax positions: As of the report date, the Company does not have any uncertain tax 
liabilities or benefits that could materially affect the effective tax rate. The tax years 2022, 2021, 
2020, were open as of the report date. Management regularly assesses the tax risk of the 
Company’s return filing positions for all open years. 
 
Note 8 – Litigation and Contingencies  
 
The Company does not have any knowledge of any involvement in legal proceedings, either of 
which the company has initiated or has been brought against it. The company’s liability, if any, 
have been reported on the balance sheet and have no knowledge of any further liabilities or 
contingencies. 
 
Note 9 – Line of Credit 
 
On March 29, 2022, JNIT Technologies Inc, Motivity Labs Inc and RPR WYATT Inc (Collectively 
referred to as “Borrowers”), have secured $ 3,500,000 Line of credit with Patriot Bank. The 
revolving loan facility was utilized to refinance existing indebtedness of Borrowers with City 
National Bank and for working capital and general corporate purposes. Each borrower is jointly and 
severally liable and has provided absolute and unconditional guarantee to Lender for prompt 
payment and performance of all obligations. The Interest on Revolving loan facility shall bear 
interest on the outstanding principal amount at the base rate, which is greater of prime rate as 
quoted by The Wall Street Journal plus 0.4% and 3.65% per annum. The line of credit matures on 
December 31, 2023. The balance outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 
was $ 2,383,595 and $ 2,384,179 respectively. The Interest expense for three months ended 
December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 was $ 54,240 and $ 53,830 respectively. 
 
Note 10 – Term Loan 
 
On March 29, 2022, JNIT Technologies Inc, Motivity Labs Inc and RPR WYATT Inc (Collectively 
referred to as “Borrowers”) entered into an agreement with Patriot Bank (referred to as “Lender”) 
and obtained a term loan for $ 1,500,000 at the interest rate of 3.81%. The term loan was utilized 
for repayment of existing indebtedness incurred for acquisition of Motivity Labs Inc. The term loan 
is repayable in sixty consecutive monthly installments of principal and interest in the amount of $ 
27,494.06 each commencing from May 1, 2022. Each borrower is jointly and severally liable and 
has provided absolute and unconditional guarantee to Lender for prompt payment and 
performance of all obligations. The borrowers have granted lien to all assets as collateral security 
for the payment and performance of all the obligations. The financial Covenants pertaining to the 
term loan are as follows: 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

 

a. Commencing with fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 maintain a combined debt service 
coverage ratio equal to or greater than 1.25 to 1 on an annual basis, determined as of each 
fiscal year end and 

b. Commencing with fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 maintain a debt to capital ratio 
equal to less than 0.75 to 1 on an annual basis, determined as of each fiscal year end. 

 
The balance outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 was $ 1,036,890 and 
$ 1,109,129 respectively. Interest expense for three months ended December 31, 2023 and 
September 30, 2023 was $ 10,243 and $ 1,800 respectively. 
 
The repayment term for the outstanding loan is as follows: 
 As of December 31, 

2023 
As of September 30, 

2023 
Within one year $      295,797  $      293,000  
1-2 years  307,255   304,350  
2-3 years  319,157   316,139  
3-4 years  114,681  195,641 
4-5 years  -   -  
More than 5 years  -   -  
Total $   1,036,890  $   1,109,129  
 
Note 11 – Notes payable 
 
Company had acquired 100% stock in Motivity Labs Inc. for $ 5,640,000. The balance 
consideration payable towards the acquisition was $ 234,955 and is shown under Notes payable in 
Balance Sheet.  The company has obtained a term loan from Patriot Bank and used the proceeds 
to settle all dues outstanding as of Balance Sheet date towards acquisition. 
 
Note 12 – Stockholder’s Equity  
 
JNIT Technologies INC is authorized to issue 1,000 shares of no par value. The common stocks 
issued and outstanding were owned by the following share holder: 
 
 December 31, 2023 September 30, 2023 

Balance, beginning of the period $    1,150 $    1,150 

Balance, end of the period        $    1,150 $    1,150 

 
Effective February 22, 2017, Magellanic Cloud Limited (formerly known as South India Projects 
Limited) had acquired all the outstanding common stock of JNIT Technologies Inc from the 
erstwhile shareholders of the Company. This acquisition was effected through a stock swap with 
the erstwhile shareholders of JNIT Technologies Inc getting shares in South India Projects Limited 
in exchange for shares in the Company. There was no cash component involved as part of the 
stock swap. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

 

Note 13 – Related party transactions 
 
In the ordinary course of business, the Company entered into transactions with entities owned 
directly/indirectly by the stockholder. All the amount is non-interest bearing and is 
repayable/recoverable on demand.  
 
The Balances as of December 31, 2023 are as follows: 
 

Related Party 
Expenses Accounts 

receivable 
Accounts 
payable 

Loan 
Given 

Advance 
Given 

Rights/Pre 
paid 

JNITH Corporation (RPR 
Wyatt) 

- (8,054) - 
- - - 

JNIT Technologies India 
Pvt. Ltd. 

32,000 - - 
- - - 

Aitech Corp - 547,500 - - - - 
Sygntech Systems Inc - - 3,116  105,000 - - 
Hoozin Inc - 80,040 - - - - 
Motivity Labs Inc - - - 1,619,000 - - 
Magellanic Cloud Limited 
- Drone 

106,250 - - 
- - 3,506,250 

 
The Balances as of September 30, 2023 are as follows: 
 

Related Party 
Expenses Accounts 

receivable 
Accounts 
payable 

Loan 
Given 

Advance 
Given 

Rights/Pre 
paid 

JNITH Corporation (RPR 
Wyatt) 

- 25,946 - 
- - - 

JNIT Technologies India 
Pvt. Ltd. 

38,000 - - 
- - - 

Aitech Corp - 547,500 - - - - 
Sygntech Systems Inc - - 3,116  - - - 
Hoozin Inc - 80,040 - - - - 
Motivity Labs Inc - 51,656 - 2,317,000 - - 
Magellanic Cloud Limited 
- Drone 

106,250 - - 
- - 3,612,500 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

 

Note 14– EIDL 
 
The Company had obtained loan from U.S. Small Business Administration under section 7(b) of 
the Small Business Act during calendar year 2020. The details pertaining to EIDL are as follows: 
 
Entity Date of Grant Amount Terms and Conditions 
JNIT Technologies 
Inc 

January 12, 
2022 

$ 2,000,000  Installment payment (including principal 
and interest) of $ 10,298 will begin 24 
months from date of the promissory note 

 The balance of principal and interest will 
be payable in thirty years from the date of 
the promissory note 

 Interest will accrue at the rate of 3.75% 
per annum based on funds advanced. 

 The entity’s assets  will be given as 
collateral. 

 
Interest accrued for EIDL for three months ended December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 
was $ 18,750 and $ 18,750 (including the same value for Motivity Inc) respectively. 
 
Note 15 – Employee Retention Credit 
 
The credit is available to eligible employers that paid qualified wages to some or all employees 
after March 12, 2020, and before January 1, 2022. Eligibility and credit amount vary depending on 
when the business impacts occurred. To be eligible, employers must have sustained a full or 
partial suspension of operations due to orders from an appropriate governmental authority limiting 
commerce, travel or group meetings due to COVID-19 during 2020 or the first three quarters of 
2021, experienced a significant decline in gross receipts during 2020 or a decline in gross receipts 
during the first three quarters of 2021. The credit amount is based on a percentage of qualified 
wages paid to employees, with the maximum credit amount per employee being subject to certain 
limitations. As with any tax credit, businesses must ensure they meet all eligibility criteria and 
comply with the rules and regulations set forth by the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) to claim the 
ERC. 
 
The Company received $ 1,739,880 as Employee retention credit for two quarters for the calendar 
year ended December 31, 2021. The management is in the process of re-evaluating eligibility 
criteria with the help of third party post information disseminated by IRS about ineligible credits 
claimed. While the management is confident that it is eligible for the credit, as a matter of abundant 
caution, it is seeking third party professional advice to ensure that it is in compliance. The ERC 
Credit received has been disclosed under “Other liabilities” in the balance sheet, pending such 
evaluation and confirmation, as of December 31, 2023. 
 
Note 16 – Retirement Benefits 
 
The Company adopted a Flexible 401(k)-profit sharing plan for its employee. There is an age and 
service period requirement for elective deferral eligibility. The employees are eligible to become 
participants following one year of employment, with at least 500 hours of service and should have 
attained a minimum of 21 years of age. The company can make matching contributions, based on 
its sole discretion as determined year to year. The company did not make any contributions during 
the three months ended December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

 

 
 
 
Note 17 – Segment Revenues 
 
The Company's operations comprise only of consulting services and the financial statements 
reflect the performance for the segment as such. 
 
Note 18 – Subsequent Events 
 
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through February 12, 2024, the date on which the 
financial statements were available to be issued. The company does not have any other reportable 
events occurring after the balance sheet date. 
 
Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic: The COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020 had adversely affected the 
economic activity globally, nationally and locally. However, this has been a thing of the past due to 
which there has been no specific impact in the year ended 2022, although the recurrence of such 
an event may impact the business and profitability. 
 
The Management is not aware of any other matter or circumstance, other than those which are 
disclosed above or not otherwise dealt with in the Financial Statements that has significantly or 
may significantly affect the operations of the company in the subsequent years the financial effects 
of which has not been provided for as of the December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023. 
 
Note 19 – Risks and Uncertainties of Doing Business 
 
In addition to the Impact of COVID-19 pandemic discussed in the previous note, many of the 
Company’s engagements involve projects that are critical to the operations of its customers’ 
businesses and provide benefits that may be difficult to quantify. Any failure in a customer’s system 
could result in a claim for substantial damages against the Company, regardless of the Company’s 
responsibility for such failure. Although the Company attempts to limit contractually its liability for 
damages arising from errors, mistakes or omissions in rendering its information technology 
services, there can be no assurance that the limitations of liability set forth in its services contracts 
will be enforceable in all instances or would otherwise protect the Company from liability for 
damages. The successful assertion of one or more large claims against the Company that exceed 
available insurance coverage, or changes in the Company’s insurance policies, including premium 
increases or the imposition of large deductible or co-insurance requirements, could adversely 
affect the Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations. 
 
Note 20– Comparative statements  
 
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified as needed to confirm to current period’s 
presentation. 
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JNIT TECHNOLOGIES INC.
SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

FOR THE THREE  MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 Dec 31, 2023  Sep 30, 2023

Cost of sales

Payroll and Benefits 2,531,340$      2,213,141$      
Outside services 1,139,394        414,280           
Subcontractors expenses 283,164           347,151           
Travel expense 33                    2,093               

Total cost of sales 3,953,931$      2,976,665$      

General  & Administrative expenses

Automobile Expense 5,377$             5,343$             
Bank service charges 1,412               1,390               
Dues and Subscriptions -                   86                    
Insurance 13,153             2,787               
Legal and Professional Fees 65,837             26,365             
Office expenses 61,494             60,688             
Payroll processing fees 6,633               5,920               
Postage and Delivery 729                  357                  
Royalty Expense 106,250           106,250           
Rent Expenses 6,057               13,339             
Telephone 9,550               10,593             
Travel 39,028             27,469             

Total general  & administrative expenses 315,519$         260,586$         

(See accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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VBC & COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountant 
A Professional Corporation 

97, Cedar Grove Lane, Suite 202, 
Somerset, NJ 08873 

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REVIEW REPORT 

To the Board of Directors and Stockholder’s of, 
Motivity Labs Inc 
Irving, TX 75039 

We have reviewed the financial statements of Motivity Labs Inc (a Texas Corporation), which 
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 and the 
related statements of income and retained earnings, cash flows and changes in stockholder’s 
equity for each of the three month period December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023, and 
the related notes to the financial statements A review includes primarily applying analytical 
procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of company’s management. 
A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression 
of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control 
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement whether due to fraud or error. 

Accountant’s Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagements in accordance with Statements on 
Standards for Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review 
Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to 
obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any material 
modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe 
that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion. 
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VBC & COMPANY 
Certified Public Accountant 
A Professional Corporation 

97, Cedar Grove Lane, Suite 202, 
Somerset, NJ 08873 

 
 

Accountant’s Conclusion  
Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made 
to the accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

 

Other matter 
The supplementary information comprising of the supplementary schedules on cost of sales 
and general and administrative expenses are presented for purposes of additional analysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from, and relates directly to, the underlying 
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The supplementary 
information has been subjected to the review procedures applied in our review of the basic 
financial statements. We are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to 
the supplementary information in relation to the accompanying reviewed financial statements 
in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 
 

 
 
 
Balachander Venkataramanan 
VBC & Company 
Certified Public Accountants 
Somerset, New Jersey 
February 12, 2024 
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MOTIVITY LABS INC.
 BALANCE SHEETS 

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 Dec 31, 2023  Sep 30, 2023

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 359,787$          403,873$          
Accounts receivable, net 9,353,195         3,043,386         
Unbilled Revenue 1,250,000         3,425,000         
Prepaid Expenses -                   187,500            
Other Current Assets 220,000            1,595,000         

Total current assets 11,182,983       8,654,759         

Other Assets
Security deposits 5,822                5,822                

Total Other assets 5,822                5,822                

Investments 550,000            550,000            
Right - of - use asset 68,205              93,781              

Total assets 11,807,010$     9,304,362$       

Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 2,932,085$       946,948$          
Accrued Payroll Liabilities 598,667            579,093            
Due to affiliates 1,619,000         2,317,000         
Accrued Income taxes 797,551            486,018            
Current portion of lease obligations 72,565              98,801              

Total current liabilities 6,019,868         4,427,860         

Other liabilities
EIDL Loan 2,144,860         2,126,110         

Total other liabilities 2,144,860         2,126,110         

Stockholder's equity
Common Stock 103,374            103,374            
Retained earnings 3,538,908         2,647,018         

Total Stockholder's equity 3,642,282         2,750,392         

Total liabilities &  Stockholder's equity 11,807,010$     9,304,362$       

(See accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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MOTIVITY LABS INC.
 STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 Dec 31, 2023  Sep 30, 2023

Revenue 
Consulting Income 8,508,533$      6,150,080$      

Total Revenue 8,508,533        6,150,080        

Cost of sales 6,919,894        4,673,429        

Gross Profit 1,588,639        1,476,651        

General and administrative expenses 340,076           220,471           

Income before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 1,248,563        1,256,180        

Interest expense 18,750             18,750             
Interest expense - Lease liabilities 1,012               1,338               
Depreciation - Lease Assets 25,576             25,576             

Income before tax 1,203,225           1,210,516           

Income Taxes 792,824           32,275             
Prior period Income Taxes (481,488)          -                   

Net Income 891,890$            1,178,241$         

(See accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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MOTIVITY LABS INC.
 STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 Dec 31, 2023  Sep 30, 2023

Cash flow from operating activities
Net income 891,890$          1,178,241$       
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
used in operating activities:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Trade and other receivables (4,134,809)       (2,099,637)       
Other current assets 1,375,000         175,000            
Prepaid Expenses 187,500            100,000            
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and other liabilities          1,636,994             777,572 
Net lease assets                   (660)                   (334)
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities (44,085)            130,842            

Cash flow from investing activities
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities -                   -                   

Cash flow from financing activities

Net cash provided by / (used in) financing activities -                   -                   

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (44,085)            130,842            

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 403,873            273,031            

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period 359,787$          403,873$          

Interest paid -$                 -$                 
Taxes paid -$                 -$                 

(See accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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MOTIVITY LABS INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY

FOR THE THREE  MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

 Dec 31, 2023  Sep 30, 2023

Common stock and paid-in capital
Balance, beginning of period 103,374$          103,374$          

Balance, end of period 103,374            103,374            

Retained earnings
Balance, beginning of period 2,647,018         1,468,778         

Net Income 891,890            1,178,241         

Balance, end of period 3,538,908         2,647,018         

Total Stockholder's equity 3,642,282$       2,750,392$       

(See accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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MOTIVITY LABS INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 

Note 1- Summary of significant accounting policies 

Nature of Operations – Motivity Labs Inc. was incorporated as a Texas Corporation in March 
2009, is engaged in providing software development and consulting services to various industries 
throughout the United States.  

Numerous factors affect the Company's operating results, including general economic conditions, 
market acceptance and demand for its consulting services, its ability to obtain new clients, and 
rapidly changing technologies and competition. The Company’s customer base covers a broad 
spectrum of industries including, Engineering, Financials, Information technologies, 
Manufacturing, Telecommunication among others.  

Accounting Policies – These financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of 
accounting in conformity with accounting principles generally accepting in the United States of 
America (“GAAP”); consequently, revenues are accepted when services are rendered and 
expenses reflected when costs are incurred. 

Concentration of Credit Risk - The Company maintains cash in bank deposit accounts which, at 
times, may exceed federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such 
accounts. The Company believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash 
equivalents. With respect to trade receivables, the Company generally does not require collateral 
because of the common business practice prevailing in the industry and also that majority of the 
Company's customers are fairly well established companies operating in a variety of industries and 
geographic regions. When necessary, the Company establishes an allowance for doubtful 
accounts based upon factors surrounding the credit risk of specific customers, historical trends and 
other information.   

Use of Estimates - The Company's management makes estimates and assumptions in the 
preparation of its financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. These estimates and assumptions may affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the respective 
reporting periods. Actual results could differ from those results implicit in the estimates and 
assumption. 

Cash and cash equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits. The 
Company considers all highly liquid investments purchased with a remaining maturity principally of 
three months or less to be cash equivalents. 

The Company maintains its cash in a bank deposit account that, at times, may exceed federally 
insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is 
not exposed to any significant credit risk. 

Financial Instruments - The Company's financial instruments including cash and cash 
equivalents, accrued expenses, accounts receivable, accounts payable and lines of credit debt, all 
of which approximate fair value at the balance sheet dates. 

Accounts receivable – Accounts receivable are generated from various commercial entities. 
Accounts receivable are stated at cost less an allowance for doubtful accounts if considered 
necessary. Credit is extended to customers after an evaluation of the customer’s financial 
condition, and generally collateral is not required. Management’s determination of the allowance 
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MOTIVITY LABS INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

 

for doubtful accounts is based on an evaluation of the accounts receivable, past experience, 
current economic conditions and other risks inherent in the accounts receivable portfolio.  
 
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - The allowance for doubtful accounts reflects the Company’s 
best estimate of probable losses inherent in the accounts receivable balance. We determine the 
allowance based on known troubled accounts, historical experience, and other currently available 
evidence.  Allowance for Doubtful accounts as on December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 
was zero. 
       

Revenue Recognition – In May 2014, the FASB issued an update to ASC 606, Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers, further amended in July 2015. This update to ASC 606 provides a five-
step process to determine when and how revenue is recognized. The core principle of the 
guidance is that a Company should recognize revenue upon transfer of promised goods or 
services to customers in an amount that reflects the expected consideration to be received in 
exchange for those goods or services. This update to ASC 606 will also result in enhanced 
disclosures about revenue, providing guidance for transactions that were not previously addressed 
comprehensively, and improving guidance for multiple-element arrangements. Effective January 
01, 2019, the Company adopted Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2014-09, Revenue 
from Contracts with Customers, using the modified retrospective method. The adoption allows 
companies to apply the new revenue standard to reporting periods beginning in the year the 
standard is first implemented, while prior periods continue to be reported in accordance with 
previous accounting guidance. Since the adoption of Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 
606 did not have a significant impact on the recognition of revenue, the Company did not have an 
opening retained earnings adjustment. 
 
The Company generates most of its revenues from Technology Staffing, and IT Services. 
Comprehensive revenue recognition model is designed to depict the transfer of promised goods or 
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be 
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenues are recognized as control of the 
promised service is transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration expected 
in exchange for the services. Revenues from contract assignments are recognized over time, 
based on hours worked by the Company’s contract professionals. The performance of the 
requested service over time is the single performance obligation for assignment revenues. 
Revenues are recognized net of variable consideration to the extent that it is probable that a 
significant reversal of revenues will not occur in subsequent periods.  
 
The Company recognizes most of its revenue on a gross basis when it acts as a principal in its 
transactions. The Company has direct contractual relationships with its customers, bears the risks 
and rewards of its arrangements, has the discretion to select the contract professionals and 
establish the price for the services to be provided. The Company primarily provides services 
through its employees and through subcontractors; the related costs are included in cost of sales. 
The Company includes billable expenses (out-of-pocket reimbursable expenses) in revenue and 
the associated expenses are included in cost of sales. Maintenance revenues, if any, are 
recognized ratably over the term of the underlying maintenance agreement.  
 
Cost of Revenues – are classified as cost of sales on the income statement and consist primarily 
of employee costs and sub-contractors’ costs, and other costs incurred in connection with the 
execution of projects. 
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MOTIVITY LABS INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

 

Unbilled Revenues – represents services rendered prior to being invoiced due to certain 
contractual restrictions. The Unbilled revenue as on December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 
was $ 1,250,000 and $ 3,425,000 respectively and is included under Accounts Receivable in the 
Balance sheet. 
   
Property and equipment – Property and equipment, consisting of computers, furniture, vehicle 
and equipment, are stated at cost. Improvements which substantially increase the useful lives of 
assets are capitalized. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred. Upon retirement or 
disposal, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts 
and any gain or loss is recorded. Depreciation on all property and equipment is calculated using 
the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which range from three to five 
years. Depreciation expense for the three months ended December 31, 2023 and September 30, 
2023 was zero. 
 
Investment – The Company has characterized its investments in marketable securities, based on 
the priority of the inputs used to value the investments, into a three-level fair value hierarchy. The 
fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for identical assets 
or liabilities (Level 1), and lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to 
measure the investments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on 
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument. 
Investments recorded in the accompanying balance sheets are categorized based on the inputs to 
valuation techniques as follows:  
Level 1 – These are investments where values are based on unadjusted quoted prices for identical 
asset in an active market the Company has the ability to access.  
Level 2 – These are investments where values are based on quoted market prices that are not 
active or model derived valuations in which all significant inputs are observable in active markets. 
Level 3 – These are investments where values are derived from techniques in which one or more 
significant inputs are unobservable. 
 
December 31, 2023 and 
September 30, 2023 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Dallas venture capital   $ 200,000 $ 200,000 
Intelligent Golk Holdings   100,000 100,000 
Teledentistry - - 250,000 250,000 
 
Income Taxes – The Company is taxed as a “C” corporation and as such accounts for income 
taxes pursuant to the provisions of Statement of Financial Statement Accounting Standards No. 
109 “Accounting for Income Taxes.” Under SFAS No. 109, deferred tax liabilities and assets are 
recognized for future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and their tax bases. Any deferred tax assets recognized 
for net operating loss carry-forwards and other items are reduced by a valuation allowance when it 
is more likely than not that the benefits may not be realized. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are 
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those 
temporary differences are expected. The Company recognizes deferred tax assets to the extent 
that it believes that these assets are more likely than not to be realized. In making such a 
determination, the Company considers all available positive and negative evidence, including 
future reversals of existing taxable temporary differences, projected future taxable income, tax-
planning strategies, and results of recent operations. If the Company determines that it would be 
able to realize its deferred tax assets in the future in excess of their net recorded amount, the 
Company would make an adjustment to the deferred tax asset valuation allowance, which would 
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reduce the provision for income taxes. There are no material deferred tax assets or liabilities as of 
December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023, as there are no material timing differences. 
 
Impairment of Assets - The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any 
indication that any asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the carrying value of such 
assets is reduced to its recoverable amount and the amount of such impairment loss is charged to 
Income statement. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed 
impairment loss no longer exists, then such loss is reversed and the asset is restated to that 
effect. 
 
Leases 
When the company is the lessee, all leases with a term of more than 12 months are recognized as 
right-of-use (ROU) assets and associated lease liabilities in the Balance Sheet. The lease 
liabilities are determined using the present value of the lease payments not yet paid and the 
company’s incremental borrowing rate, which approximates the rate at which the company would 
borrow on a secured basis in the country where the lease was executed. The interest rate implicit 
in the lease is generally not determinable in transactions where the company is the lessee. The 
ROU asset equals the lease liability adjusted for any initial direct costs (IDCs), prepaid rent and 
lease incentives. Operating leases are included in operating right-of-use assets–net and lease 
liabilities in the Balance Sheet. The lease term includes options to extend or terminate the lease 
when it is reasonably certain that the company will exercise that option. 
 
Note 2 – Advertising Costs   
 
The Company expenses advertising costs in the period incurred. The Company did not incur any 
advertising and business promotion expenses for the three months ended December 31, 2023 and 
September 30, 2023 was zero. 
 
Note 3 – Cash and Cash equivalents   

As of December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023, the Cash and cash equivalents was $ 359,787 
and $ 403,873 respectively. 

Note 4 – Property and equipment 
 
 As at December 31, 

2023 
As at September 30, 

2023 
Computer equipment and software 
Furniture & Fixtures               $       16,242                  $     16,242 
Vehicle 
Other fixed assets                        22,809                          22,809 
Total assets                       39,052                          39,052 
Less: Accumulated depreciation                      (39,052)                        (39,052) 
Property and Equipment, net               $               -                  $               - 
 
The depreciation expense for the three months ended December 31, 2023 and September 30, 
2023 was zero. 
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Note 5 – Commitments and Contingencies 
 
Operating Lease:  
The Company adopted ASC 842 with effect from February 1, 2023. Lease assets and liabilities are 
determined predominantly as the present value of the payments due over the lease term. All 
leases are recognized as lease liabilities and lease assets on the balance sheet. Lease liabilities 
represent obligation to make payments arising from the lease. Lease assets represent right to use 
an underlying asset for the lease term.  
 
Information related to operating lease cost are as follows: 
 
 2023 
Operating lease cost              $  27,248 
Right of use asset 68,204 
Lease liabilities 72,567 
Weighted average remaining lease term                    8 months 
Weighted average discount rate 5% 
 
The following table presents undiscounted cash outflows for operating leases on annual basis for 
next five years and thereafter. 
 
 As of December 31, 

2023 
As of September 30, 

2023 
Less than one year $      73,633 $     100,881 
   
Total $      73,633 $     100,881  
 
Security deposit related to lease for office premises as on December 31, 2023 and September 30, 
2023 was $ 5,822 respectively. 
 
Note 6 – Line of Credit 
 
On March 29, 2022, JNIT Technologies Inc, Motivity Labs Inc and RPR WYATT Inc (Collectively 
referred to as “Borrowers”), have secured $ 3,500,000 Line of credit with Patriot Bank. The 
revolving loan facility was utilized to refinance existing indebtedness of Borrowers with City 
National Bank and for working capital and general corporate purposes. Each borrower is jointly and 
severally liable and has provided absolute and unconditional guarantee to Lender for prompt 
payment and performance of all obligations. The Interest on Revolving loan facility shall bear 
interest on the outstanding principal amount at the base rate, which is greater of prime rate as 
quoted by The Wall Street Journal plus 0.4% and 3.65% per annum. The line of credit matures on 
December 31, 2023. The balance outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 
was $ 2,383,595 and $ 2,384,179 respectively. The Interest expense for three months ended 
December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 was $ 54,240 and $ 53,830 respectively. The loan 
and interest paid/accrued on the loan has been accounted in JNIT technologies Inc. 
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Note 7 – Term Loan 
 
On March 29, 2022, JNIT Technologies Inc, Motivity Labs Inc and RPR WYATT Inc (Collectively 
referred to as “Borrowers”) entered into an agreement with Patriot Bank (referred to as “Lender”) 
and obtained a term loan for $ 1,500,000 at the interest rate of 3.81%. The term loan was utilized 
for repayment of existing indebtedness incurred for acquisition of Motivity Labs Inc. The term loan 
is repayable in sixty consecutive monthly installments of principal and interest in the amount of $ 
27,494.06 each commencing from May 1, 2022. Each borrower is jointly and severally liable and 
has provided absolute and unconditional guarantee to Lender for prompt payment and 
performance of all obligations. The borrowers have granted lien to all assets as collateral security 
for the payment and performance of all the obligations. The financial Covenants pertaining to the 
term loan are as follows: 
 

a. Commencing with fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 maintain a combined debt service 
coverage ratio equal to or greater than 1.25 to 1 on an annual basis, determined as of each 
fiscal year end and 

b. Commencing with fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 maintain a debt to capital ratio 
equal to less than 0.75 to 1 on an annual basis, determined as of each fiscal year end. 

 
The balance outstanding as of December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 was $ 1,036,890 and 
$ 1,109,129 respectively. Interest expense for three months ended December 31, 2023 and 
September 30, 2023 was $ 10,243 and $ 1,800 respectively. 
 
The repayment term for the outstanding loan is as follows: 
 As of December 31, 

2023 
As of September 30, 

2023 
Within one year $      295,797  $      293,000  
1-2 years  307,255   304,350  
2-3 years  319,157   316,139  
3-4 years  114,681  195,641 
4-5 years  -   -  
More than 5 years  -   -  
Total $   1,036,890  $   1,109,129  
 
The loan and interest paid/accrued on the loan has been accounted in JNIT technologies Inc. 
 
Note 8 – Income Taxes 
 
The Company has elected to be taxed as a “C” corporation under the provisions of the Internal 
Revenue Code and applicable state statutes.   
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The components of provision for taxes are as follows: 
 
 Quarter ended December 31, 

2023 
Quarter ended September 30, 

2023 
Federal Income tax $     560,665 $     32,275 
State tax 232,159 - 
Income tax expenses 792,824 32,275 
   
Prior period taxes (481,488) - 
   
Total Income tax expenses $    311,336 $    32,275 
 
Uncertain tax positions: As of the report date, the Company does not have any uncertain tax 
liabilities or benefits that could materially affect the effective tax rate. The tax years 2022, 2021, 
2020, were open as of the report date. Management regularly assesses the tax risk of the 
Company’s return filing positions for all open years. 
 
Note 9 – Litigation and Contingencies  
 
The Company does not have any knowledge of any involvement in legal proceedings, either of 
which the company has initiated or has been brought against it. The company’s liability, if any, 
have been reported on the balance sheet and have no knowledge of any further liabilities or 
contingencies. 
 
Note 10 – Stockholder’s Equity  
 
The common stocks issued and outstanding were owned by the following share holder: 
 
 December 31, 2023 September 30, 2023 

Balance, beginning of the period $    103,374 $    103,374 

Balance, end of the period $    103,374 $    103,374 

 
The entire issued capital of Motivity Labs Inc was held by JNIT technologies Inc. 
 
Note 11 – Related party transactions 
 
In the ordinary course of business, the Company entered into transactions with entities owned 
directly/indirectly by the stockholder. All the amount is non-interest bearing and is 
repayable/recoverable on demand.  
 
The Balances as of December 31, 2023 are as follows: 
 

Related Party 
Expenses Accounts 

receivable 
Accounts 
payable 

Loan 
received 

Advance 
Given 

Rights/Pre 
paid 

JNIT Technologies 
Inc. 

- - - 
$ 1,619,000 - - 

 
 

15



MOTIVITY LABS INC. 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2023 AND SEPTEMBER 30, 2023 
 

 

The Balances as of September 30, 2023 are as follows: 
 

Related Party 
Expenses Accounts 

receivable 
Accounts 
payable 

Loan 
received 

Advance 
Given 

Rights/Pre 
paid 

JNIT Technologies 
Inc. 

- - - 
$ 2,317,000 - - 

 
Note 12– EIDL 
 
The Company had obtained loan from U.S. Small Business Administration under section 7(b) of 
the Small Business Act during calendar year 2020. The details pertaining to EIDL are as follows: 
 
Entity Date of Grant Amount Terms and Conditions 
Motivity Labs Inc January 12, 

2022 
$ 2,000,000  Installment payment (including principal 

and interest) of $ 10,298 will begin 24 
months from date of the promissory note 

 The balance of principal and interest will 
be payable in thirty years from the date 
of the promissory note 

 Interest will accrue at the rate of 3.75% 
per annum based on funds advanced. 

 The entity’s assets  will be given as 
collateral. 

 
Interest accrued for EIDL for three months ended December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023 
was $ 18,750 respectively. 
 
Note 13 – Retirement Benefits 
 
The Company adopted a Flexible 401(k)-profit sharing plan for its employee. There is an age and 
service period requirement for elective deferral eligibility. The employees are eligible to become 
participants following one year of employment, with at least 500 hours of service and should have 
attained a minimum of 21 years of age. The company can make matching contributions, based on 
its sole discretion as determined year to year. The company did not make any contributions during 
the three months ended December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023. 
   
Note 14 – Segment Revenues 
 
The Company's operations comprise only of consulting services and the financial statements 
reflect the performance for the segment as such. 
 
Note 15 – Subsequent Events 
 
The Company has evaluated subsequent events through February 12, 2024, the date on which the 
financial statements were available to be issued. The company does not have any other reportable 
events occurring after the balance sheet date. 
 
Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic: The COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020 had adversely affected the 
economic activity globally, nationally and locally. However, this has been a thing of the past due to 
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which there has been no specific impact in the year ended 2023, although the recurrence of such 
an event may impact the business and profitability. 
 
The Management is not aware of any other matter or circumstance, other than those which are 
disclosed above or not otherwise dealt with in the Financial Statements that has significantly or 
may significantly affect the operations of the company in the subsequent years the financial effects 
of which has not been provided for as of the December 31, 2023 and September 30, 2023. 
 
Note 16 – Risks and Uncertainties of Doing Business 
 
In addition to the Impact of COVID-19 pandemic discussed in the previous note, many of the 
Company’s engagements involve projects that are critical to the operations of its customers’ 
businesses and provide benefits that may be difficult to quantify. Any failure  
in a customer’s system could result in a claim for substantial damages against the Company, 
regardless of the Company’s responsibility for such failure. Although the Company attempts to limit 
contractually its liability for damages arising from errors, mistakes or omissions in rendering its 
information technology services, there can be no assurance that the limitations of liability set forth 
in its services contracts will be enforceable in all instances or would otherwise protect the 
Company from liability for damages. The successful assertion of one or more large claims against 
the Company that exceed available insurance coverage, or changes in the Company’s insurance 
policies, including premium increases or the imposition of large deductible or co-insurance 
requirements, could adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition and results of 
operations. 
 
Note 17– Comparative statements  
 
Certain comparative figures have been reclassified as needed to confirm to current period’s 
presentation. 
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 Dec 31, 2023  Sep 30, 2023

Cost of sales

Payroll and Benefits 1,758,914$       1,738,759$       
Subcontractors expenses 1,671,392         1,442,228         
Travel expense 803                   1,128                
Cost of Services Revenue 3,350,500         1,405,200         
Offshore expenses 138,285            86,114              

Total cost of sales 6,919,894$       4,673,429$       

General  & Administrative expenses

Automobile Expense 332$                 -$                 
Bank service charges 1,007                792                   
Dues and Subscriptions 14,484              1,770                
Insurance 79,430              104,197            
Legal and Professional Fees 23,620              3,990                
Office expenses 44,904              27,918              
Outside services 94,350              80,731              
Rent Expenses 1,532                532                   
Taxes and License 54,866              -                   
Telephone 534                   540                   
Travel 25,015              -                   

Total general  & administrative expenses 340,076$          220,471$          

(See accountant's review report and accompanying notes to financial statements)
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